
 

 
BRIDGEWATER TOWNSHIP BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING 

THURSDAY, JANUARY 4, 2024, 7:00 P.M. 
BRIDGEWATER TOWNSHIP HALL  

10990 CLINTON RD, MANCHESTER, MI 48158 

AGENDA 
 

I. CALL TO ORDER / ESTABLISH QUORUM / PLEDGE ALLEGIANCE  
 

II. REVIEW AND APPROVE AGENDA 
 

III. CITIZEN PARTICIPATION 
 

IV. APPROVAL OF REGULAR BOARD MEETING MINUTES – DECEMBER 7, 2023 
 

V. NEW BUSINESS 
A. Approval of Claims Listing for December 1, 2023 December 31, 2023 
B. Snow Removal Quote – Neff Trucking 
C. Board of Review Federal Poverty Guidelines Resolution  
D. Xela Pac Sampling Results Discussion 
E. 2024 Proposed Road Projects Discussion 
F. Fire Millage Renewal Discussion 
G. ARPA Award – Obligation of Funds Discussion 

 
VI. REPORTS & CORRESPONDANCE 

A. Public Safety Report – Written report from WCSO 
B. Zoning Administrator’s Report – Written report from Rodney Nanney 
C. Assessor’s Report 
D. Supervisor’s Report 
E. Clerk’s Report 
F. Treasurer’s Report 
G. Trustees’ Report   
H. Planning Commission Report – Minutes included in Board packet 
I. Farmland Preservation Board Report – No meeting in December 

 
VII. CITIZEN PARTICIPATION 

 
VIII. ADJOURNMENT 

 

 
 

 



Bridgewater Township Board of Trustees Minutes 

Meeting Date: 7-Dec-23  
Minutes by: Clerk McQueer Page 1 of 2 

I. CALL TO ORDER 
7-Dec-23 meeting called to order by Supervisor Fromhart at 7:11 p.m. followed by the Pledge of Allegiance at 
Bridgewater Township Hall, 10990 Clinton Road, Manchester, MI. 
Present:5     Trustee Faust; Trustee Fromhart; Trustee Ahrens, Trustee Oliver, Trustee McQueer . 
Absent:0        
Citizen attendance:2 
 

 
II. REVIEW AND APPROVE AGENDA 

• Motion to approve the agenda as amended removing item F-Snow Removal contract and adding item F- 
Banking Resolution 2023-13 – Ms. Fromhart; support –Ms. Ahrens; vote – unanimous. 

 
III. CITIZEN PARTICIPATION 

• None 
IV.  

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
• Motion to approve the previous meeting minutes as drafted – Ms. Ahrens; support – Mr. Faust;  

vote – unanimous. 
 

V. NEW BUSINESS 
A. Approval of Claims Listing 
• Motion to approve disbursements of $13,199.26 for general operations and $12,623.41 for sewer 

operations; total expenditure of $25,822.67 for the month of November –Ms. Ahrens; support – Mr. 
Faust; vote – unanimous. 

 
B.  Board of Trustees 2024 Regular Meeting Dates Resolution. 

Motion to approve The Bridgewater Township Board of Trustee 2024 Regular Meeting Dates 
Resolution 2023-10, as amended– Mr. Oliver: support – Ms. Ahrens vote – unanimous. 

 
C.  Bridgewater Township Hall Study Proposal – Rueter Associates Architects. 
• The Board discussed the proposal and agreed it was too expensive. The board agreed to look at other 

options, getting other quotes and using current plans with an engineer’s approval. Discussed possible 
contractors in the area to get bids. Looking at a possible 2025 start date depending on cost. 

 
D. Village of Manchester WWTP Operation & Maintenance Contract. 
• Motion to approve the Village of Manchester WWTP O & M contract. Ms. McQueer; support – Mr. 

Faust vote – Roll call; Ahrens, Faust, Fromhart, McQueer, Oliver - Yes 
 

E.  Resolution 2023-11, to Amend Sewer Usage Charges. 
• Motion to approve Resolution 2023-11, to Amend Sewer Usage Charges. 

 Ms. McQueer; support – Mr. Oliver vote –  Roll call; Ahrens, Faust, Fromhart, McQueer, Oliver - Yes 
 

F.  Investment Banking Resolution 2023-13. 
• Motion to approve Investment Banking Resolution 2023-11. 

 Ms. Fromhart; support – Ms. McQueer; vote – Roll call; Ahrens, Faust, Fromhart, McQueer, Oliver - Yes 
 
 



Bridgewater Township Board of Trustees Minutes 

Meeting Date: 7-Dec-23  
Minutes by: Clerk McQueer Page 2 of 2 

VI. REPORTS AND CORRESPONDENCE 
A. Public Safety Report 
• No report. 

B. Supervisor’s Report 
• Newsletter was mailed with the Dember Tax bill, Supervisor thanked everyone that contributed. 
• Shared information about speed control in the Hamlet. 
• Sampler collection started at Xelapak on Monday. 

C. Assessor’s Report 
• No report. 

 
D. Clerk’s Report 
• Motion to increase the Deputy Clerk and Treasurer’s hourly wage to $15.00, effective immediately. Ms. 

Fromhart; support – Mr. Faust; vote – unanimous. 
• Motion to increase Election Inspector’s wage to $15.00 and Election Chair’s hourly wage to $16.00, 

effective immediately. Ms. Ahrens; support – Mr. Faust; vote – unanimous. 
• Motion to allow up to $500.00 per election for staff meals and supplies. Ms. Ahrens; support – Mr. 

Olive; vote – unanimous. 
• Motion to expense $ 300.00 for a new locking filing cabinet for the Clerk. Ms. Ahrens; support – Mr. 

Olive; vote – unanimous. 
• The clerk reported on estimated cost for each 9 early days of voting to be $3,600.00. There will be 3 

elections in 2024. There may be opportunities for grant reimbursement.  
• Reported on the November 7 election, 110 absentee voter ballots and 77 in person voters. The 

Manchester Schools Milage did not pass in Bridgewater Township. It passed with the district wide vote. 
 

E. Treasurer’s Report   
• Tax bills were mailed December 1, 2023.   
• Treasure will invest $200,000.00 in a new CD at County Wide Bank. 
• Getting many calls about higher tax bills due to this year’s rate of inflation increase. 

 
F. Trustees’ Report 
• Trustee Faust 

            No Report 
• Trustee Oliver 

No report 
 

G. Zoning Administrator’s Report 
• A written report from Mr. Nanney is included in the board packet. 

H. Planning Commission 
• A written report is included in the board packet. 

 
VII. CITIZEN PARTICIPATION 

• Mr. Gentile spoke about Xelapak and the possible sewer concerns. 
 

VIII. ADJOURNMENT 
• Ms. Fromhart adjourned the meeting at 9:32 p.m. 

 



Bridgewater Township Board of Trustees Minutes 

Meeting Date: 2-Nov-23  Page 1 of 2 

I. CALL TO ORDER 
2-Nov-23 meeting called to order by Supervisor Fromhart at 7:08 p.m. followed by the Pledge of Allegiance 
at Bridgewater Township Hall, 10990 Clinton Road, Manchester, MI. 
Present: Trustee Ahrens, Trustee Faust; Trustee Fromhart; Trustee McQueer; Trustee Oliver  
Absent: None  
Citizen attendance: 0 
 

II. REVIEW AND APPROVE AGENDA 
• Motion to approve the agenda as amended adding Watts contract and Washtenaw County white paper – 

Ms. Fromhart; support – Ms. McQueer; vote – unanimous. 
 

III. CITIZEN PARTICIPATION 
•  None 

 
IV. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

• Motion to approve the meeting minutes of 5-Oct-23 as presented – Mr. Oliver; support – Ms. Ahrens;  
vote – unanimous. 

 
 

V. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
• The Board had a lengthy discussion about contracting services to test Xela Pac, Motion to approve the 

proposal from Global Environmental Consulting, LLC, substituting phosphate for ammonia testing, 
testing for 24 hours not to exceed $1,470.00. –Mr. Oliver; support – Ms. Fromhart; vote – unanimous 
 

VI. NEW BUSINESS 
 

A. WATS FY 2024 Membership Dues 
• Motion to approve $200.00 for WATS FY 2024 Membership Dues – Ms. McQueer;  

support – Mr. Oliver; vote – unanimous. 
 

A. Approval of Claims Listing 
• Motion to approve disbursements of $24,885.710 for general operations and $6,850.39 for sewer 

operations; total expenditure of $31,735.49 for the month of October – Ms. Fromhart;  
support – Ms. Faust; vote – unanimous. 

 
   B    Resolution in Opposition to Local Preemption on Utility Scale Renewable Energy Facilities 

• Motion to approve Resolution 2023-09 as presented. – Ms. McQueer; support – Mr. Oliver.  
roll call vote – unanimous. 

 
   C     Resolution Honoring Tom Wharam 

• Motion to approve Resolution 2023-10 as presented. – Ms. McQueer; support – Ms. Ahrens.  
roll call vote – unanimous. 
 
 

VII. REPORTS AND CORRESPONDENCE 
A. Public Safety Report 
• No report was received. 



Bridgewater Township Board of Trustees Minutes 

Meeting Date: 2-Nov-23  Page 2 of 2 

 
B. Supervisor’s Report 
• See board packet 
• Attended meeting with the Village of Manchester to talk about upcoming BWSP contract renewal. 
• Received complaints about Neal Rd. and Bridgewater Commons. 
• Received a FOIA request. 
• Manchester library has prepared a mileage renewal for next year. 
• Speaking with Rep. Dingell about grants available. 
• Attended MTA seminar for roads. 

 
C. Assessor’s Report 
• No report was received from Ms. Rider. 

 
D. Clerk’s Report 
• Clean up day was great; report will follow next month. 
• We have sent 276 Absent ballot applications and received 127 back. The accuracy test went well. 
• Weekend hours November 4 & 5, Saturday and Sunday 1:00 p.m. – 5:00 p.m. 

 
E. Treasurer’s Report  
• Property taxes will be sent December 1st. 
• Ms. Ahrens went to WCCA meeting for Mr. Oliver and gave a report. 

 
F. Trustees’ Report 
• Trustee Faust 

None 
• Trustee Oliver 

o None 
G. Zoning Administrator’s Report 
• A written report from Mr. Nanney is included in the board packet 

H. Planning Commission 
• The minutes are in the board packet 

 
I. Farmland Preservation Board Report 
•  No meeting, lack of quorum. 

 
VIII. CITIZEN PARTICIPATION 

• None 
 

IX. ADJOURNMENT 
• Ms. Fromhart adjourned the meeting at 9:32 p.m. 

 





Apr '23 - Mar 24 Budget $ Over Budget

Income
Clean-up Day Grant 1,769 2,500 -731
Clean Up Donation 227 100 127
4402 · Property tax - operation 11,103 95,000 -83,897
4405 · Property tax - fire millage 6,110 50,000 -43,890
4447 · Tax administration fee 17,713 38,000 -20,287
4448 · Tax collection fees 2,473 3,800 -1,328
4460 · Township permits 11,150 500 10,650
4465 · Land division fees 900 700 200
4574 · Revenue sharing 113,945 176,349 -62,404
4665 · Interest Income 773 3,500 -2,727
4672 · Other Income 7 100 -93
4675 · Metro Auth.-restricted to roads 4,787 3,800 987
4700 · Election Reimbursement 1,335 0 1,335

Total Income 172,290 374,349 -202,059

Gross Profit 172,290 374,349 -202,059

Expense
5101000 · Township Board

5101703 · Trustee salary 3,821 5,094 -1,274
5101727 · Township supplies & expenses 1,034 1,000 34
5101770 · Conferences & Training 0 1,000 -1,000
5102703 · Designated rep 150 500 -350

Total 5101000 · Township Board 5,005 7,594 -2,589

5171000 · Supervisor
5171703 · Supervisor Salary 14,286 19,048 -4,762
5171727 · Supervisor Expense 22 1,000 -978
5209000 · Assessor

5209705 · Board of Review expenses 1,025 1,500 -475
5209805 · Assessor Wages 18,230 22,800 -4,570
5209810 · Assessor Expense 1,787 2,800 -1,013

Total 5209000 · Assessor 21,042 27,100 -6,058

Total 5171000 · Supervisor 35,349 47,148 -11,799

5173000 · Other General Government
5173715 · Social Security 4,370 6,000 -1,630
5173801 · Attorney & Consulting Expenses 3,730 2,000 1,730
5173802 · Audit fees 0 5,000 -5,000
5173811 · Membership fees & dues 2,262 2,500 -238
5173890 · Newsletter (non-recyc) 247 1,000 -753
5173895 · Website Administrator 527 1,000 -473
5173912 · Insurance & Bonds 6,462 8,000 -1,538
5173955 · Miscellaneous 754 1,000 -246
5174800 · Bank Fees -50 0 -50

Total 5173000 · Other General Government 18,302 26,500 -8,198

5215700 · Clerk
5173900 · Printing & publishing 103 500 -397
5174810 · Deputy Clerk 948 1,600 -652
5191727 · Election expense 3,137 2,000 1,137
5215703 · Clerk salary 14,841 19,788 -4,947
5215727 · Clerk supplies & expense 2,506 3,500 -994

Total 5215700 · Clerk 21,535 27,388 -5,853

Bridgewater Township
Dec 31, 2023 Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual
Accrual Basis April 2023 through March 2024

Page 1



Apr '23 - Mar 24 Budget $ Over Budget

5253700 · Treasurer
5253701 · Tax Collection Expense 1,802 3,000 -1,198
5253703 · Treasurer salary 16,123 21,497 -5,374
5253704 · Deputy Treasurer Wages 450 1,600 -1,150
5253727 · Treasurer supplies & expenses 1,347 3,000 -1,653

Total 5253700 · Treasurer 19,722 29,097 -9,375

5265000 · Building & Grounds
5265728 · Maintenance & Utilities 6,186 10,000 -3,814
5265925 · Cemetery care 3,147 2,800 347
5265980 · Building improvement & equipmen 5,348 5,000 348

Total 5265000 · Building & Grounds 14,681 17,800 -3,119

5301800 · Public Safety
5339727 · Fire protection billing expense 70,857 80,000 -9,144

Total 5301800 · Public Safety 70,857 80,000 -9,144

5400700 · Planning & zoning
5400701 · Planning

5400727 · Planning comm. wage & expense 3,475 7,000 -3,525
5400803 · Planning consultant - on-going 4,059 7,000 -2,941
5411810 · Conferences & Training 100 1,000 -900

Total 5400701 · Planning 7,634 15,000 -7,366

5410726 · Zoning
5410704 · Land Division Processing Fees 1,475 1,800 -325
5410727 · Zoning ad.wage & expense 5,580 7,500 -1,920
5411727 · Zon Bd of Appeals Expense 0 500 -500

Total 5410726 · Zoning 7,055 9,800 -2,745

Total 5400700 · Planning & zoning 14,689 24,800 -10,111

5440000 · Public works
5440846 · Road Improvements 97,709 150,000 -52,291
5440847 · Drains at large 33,832 63,832 -30,000
5440849 · Clean-up Day 4,564 3,500 1,064
5440852 · Street lighting 2,720 5,000 -2,280
5440000 · Public works - Other 0 97,709 -97,709

Total 5440000 · Public works 138,824 320,041 -181,217

5500000 · Contingencies 0 522 -522
66900 · Reconciliation Discrepancies -0

Total Expense 338,963 580,890 -241,927

Net Income -166,673 -206,541 39,868

Bridgewater Township
Dec 31, 2023 Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual
Accrual Basis April 2023 through March 2024

Page 2



Dec 31, 23

ASSETS
Current Assets

Checking/Savings
1002 · General Checking-Key Bank 90,961.04
1010 · General Savings-Key Bank 238,037.84
1016 · Bank of Ann Arbor 5yr 106,418.05
1017 · Old National 5 yr 118,737.71

Total Checking/Savings 554,154.64

Accounts Receivable
1200 · Accounts Receivable 26,627.00

Total Accounts Receivable 26,627.00

Other Current Assets
1081 · Due from Sewer Operations 2,223.68
1201 · Accounts Receivable 2 1,590.00

Total Other Current Assets 3,813.68

Total Current Assets 584,595.32

Fixed Assets
1600 · Buildings 98,329.35
1610 · Equipment 28,244.21
1620 · Land 70,863.09
1630 · Siding & Windows 17,049.00
1640 · Township Hall Improvements 54,079.30
1650 · Accumulated Depreciation -112,272.85

Total Fixed Assets 156,292.10

TOTAL ASSETS 740,887.42

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabilities

Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable

2000 · Accounts Payable -2,379.83

Total Accounts Payable -2,379.83

Credit Cards
2050 · Comerica - Clerk/Treasurer -738.40

Total Credit Cards -738.40

Other Current Liabilities
2100 · Payroll Liabilities 39.27
2202 · Accounts Payable. -12,980.00
2217 · Escrow Deposits Payable

2220 · Due to SMR-Elliott parcel 2,500.00
2233 · Due to SMR-Crego/Peltcs 2,500.00
2252 · Due Metro General Contractors 1,000.00
2253-01 · Due to Bridgewater Commons 485.00
2253-02 · Bridgewater Commons - Landscapi 2,600.00
2970 · Tillman Escrow 65.00

Total 2217 · Escrow Deposits Payable 9,150.00

Total Other Current Liabilities -3,790.73

Total Current Liabilities -6,908.96

Bridgewater Township General Fund
Dec 31, 2023 Balance Sheet
Accrual Basis As of December 31, 2023

Page 1



Dec 31, 23

Long Term Liabilities
2900 · Deferred revenue-ARPA 181,543.75

Total Long Term Liabilities 181,543.75

Total Liabilities 174,634.79

Equity
3900 · Fund Balance 576,633.76
3940 · Invested in Capital Assets, Net 156,292.10
Net Income -166,673.23

Total Equity 566,252.63

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 740,887.42

Bridgewater Township General Fund
Dec 31, 2023 Balance Sheet
Accrual Basis As of December 31, 2023

Page 2





Apr - Dec 23 Budget

Ordinary Income/Expense
Income

Connection Fees
Easement Fee 250.00
Grinder Pump Reimb + 10% 12,100.00
Inspection Fee 150.00
Tap Fee 104,082.20

Total Connection Fees 116,582.20 0.00

Interest Income Master Account
Interest Income Checking 464.83 100.00

Total Interest Income Master Account 464.83 100.00

Operation Maintenance Income 75,060.00 100,000.00

Total Income 192,107.03 100,100.00

Gross Profit 192,107.03 100,100.00

Expense
Bank Service Charges 130.00
Collection System

Billing
Billing Clerk 0.00 1,200.00
Office Supplies 0.00 200.00

Total Billing 0.00 1,400.00

Grinder Pump repairs 23,076.56 15,000.00
Miss Dig Locator Service 2,327.27 2,500.00
New Grinders 0.00 10,000.00

Total Collection System 25,403.83 28,900.00

Insurance 0.00 4,000.00
Legal & Professional

Audit 0.00 1,500.00
Engineer 1,500.00 1,000.00

Total Legal & Professional 1,500.00 2,500.00

Treatment Plant
Building & Grounds Maintenance 1,872.18 3,500.00
Chemicals 10,525.90 7,000.00
Diesel Fuel/Propane 784.41 1,000.00
Electricity 18,639.87 24,000.00
Equipment Repairs 6,699.50 5,000.00
Generator Maintenance Contract 0.00 1,000.00
NPDES Permit 1,950.00 2,400.00
Phone Service 0.00 1,200.00
Plant Operator 29,874.22 36,000.00
Sludge Handling & Disposal 5,551.20 5,000.00
Supplies 96.07 500.00

Total Treatment Plant 75,993.35 86,600.00

Total Expense 103,027.18 122,000.00

Net Ordinary Income 89,079.85 -21,900.00

Net Income 89,079.85 -21,900.00

Bridgewater Township Sewer Operation
Dec 31, 23 Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual
Accrual Basis April through December 2023

Page 1



Dec 31, 23

ASSETS
Current Assets

Checking/Savings
Key-Sewer O/M

Capital Improvements Reserve 42,000.00
Key-Sewer O/M - Other 30,217.84

Total Key-Sewer O/M 72,217.84

Key Sewer O/M Saving 209,270.72

Total Checking/Savings 281,488.56

Accounts Receivable
Accounts receivable 13,642.30

Total Accounts Receivable 13,642.30

Other Current Assets
Current Year Tx Roll Receivable 12,980.00

Due From Tax -2,197.90
Inventory Asset 65,756.00

Total Other Current Assets 76,538.10

Total Current Assets 371,668.96

Fixed Assets
Accessory Building 53,320.00
Accumulated Depr - Access Bldg -13,359.63
Equipment 101,752.20
Accumulated Depr - Equipment -86,061.44
Sewer System Plant 1,966,444.05
Accumulated Depr - Sewer System -827,544.78
Land 55,355.06

Total Fixed Assets 1,249,905.46

Other Assets
Special Assessment Receivable 8,331.24

Total Other Assets 8,331.24

TOTAL ASSETS 1,629,905.66

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabilities

Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable

*Accounts Payable -2,982.10

Total Accounts Payable -2,982.10

Other Current Liabilities
Due to General Fund -1,986.00

Total Other Current Liabilities -1,986.00

Total Current Liabilities -4,968.10

Total Liabilities -4,968.10

Equity
Invested in capital assets, net 1,315,661.00
Unrestricted Funds (QB RE acct) 230,132.91
Net Income 89,079.85

Total Equity 1,634,873.76

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 1,629,905.66

Bridgewater Township Sewer Operation
Dec 29, 2023 Balance Sheet
Accrual Basis As of December 31, 2023

Page 1



Neff	Trucking	&	Contracting	Inc.													
18118	Timberlake	Trail		 	 	 	 	 734-385-6158	
Manchester,	MI	48158	 	 	 	 	 	 734-476-0467	
	

	
	
*Per	push=	any	snowfall	equaling	1"-3":	for	every	additional	1"	there	will	be		
an	additional	charge	of	$	5.75	per	inch.	
	
**Salting	will	be	done	after	every	push	of	1"	of	snow	or	more.		1”	or	less	accumulations	will	be	a	salting	
event.	
	
Notice	to	all	customers:	
Any	salt	pricing	in	this	contract	may	vary	according	to	the	current	market	price	and	availability.	Neff	
Trucking	&	Contracting	Inc.	feels	confident	that	we	have	enough	salt	in	our	possession	and/or	on	
reserve	to	take	care	of	all	of	our	accounts	accordingly.	
	
Neff	Trucking	&	Contracting	is	not	responsible	for	any	slip	and	fall	accidents	due	to	any	snow	or	ice	
accumulation	on	premises.	
	
All	snow	removal	will	be	done	by	7:00	a.m.,	weather	permitting.	
	
Neff	Trucking	&	Contracting	Inc.	is	fully	insured	with	all	necessary	liability	insurance.		An	up	to	date	
policy	is	available	upon	request.		If	you	have	any	questions,	please	feel	free	to	contact	us	at	anytime	at	
734-476-0467	
	
Respectfully	Submitted:	Neff	Trucking	&	Contracting	Inc.		
	
Accepted	By:	 Accepted	Date	

	 Bridgewater	Township	Hall	
	

10990	Clinton	Rd,	Manchester,	MI	48158		

	
Estimate	Date:	12/13/23	

	
Items	

	
Snow	Removal	Bid	

		
	

	
	
											1	

	
Plow	Lot:	$70.00	

	
Shovel	Walks:	$55.00	

	
Salt	Walks:	$55.00	

	
	
	

	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	 	
	

	
	
	
		



 
BRIDGEWATER TOWNSHIP BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

BOARD OF REVIEW GUIDELINES  
FOR POVERTY/HARDSHIP EXEMPTIONS 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 2024-01 
 

WHEREAS, the General Property Tax Act, MCL 211.7u, states that the homestead of persons 
who, in the judgment of the supervisor and the board of review, by reason of poverty, are unable 
to contribute to the public charges is eligible for exemption in whole or part from taxation under 
the General Property Tax Act; and 
 
WHEREAS, a township board is required by MCL 211.7u to adopt guidelines for the poverty 
exemption; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED, pursuant to MCL 211.7u, that Bridgewater 
Township, Washtenaw County, adopts the following guidelines for the supervisor and board of 
review to implement. 

The guidelines shall include but not be limited to the specific income and asset levels of the 
claimant and all persons residing in the household. 

To be eligible for exemption under this section, a person must do all of the following on an 
annual basis: 

1.  Own and occupy as a principal residence the property for which an exemption is 
requested.  The person shall affirm this ownership and occupancy status in writing by 
filing a form prescribed by the state tax commission with the local assessing unit. 

2.  File a claim with the board of review on a form prescribed by the state tax commission 
and provided by the local assessing unit, accompanied by federal and state income tax 
returns for all persons residing in the principal residence, including any property tax 
credit returns, filed in the immediately preceding year or in the current year.  Federal and 
state income tax returns are not required for a person residing in the principal residence if 
that person was not required to file a federal or state income tax return in the tax year in 
which the exemption under this section is claimed or in the immediately preceding tax 
year, and an affidavit in a form prescribed by the state tax commission may be accepted 
in place of the federal or state income tax return. 

3.  Produce a valid driver’s license or other form of identification if requested by the 
supervisor or board of review. 

4. Produce a deed, land contract, or other evidence of ownership of the property for which 
an exemption is requested if required by the supervisor and board of review. 

5.  Meet the federal poverty income guidelines as defined and determined annually by the    
United States Office of Management and Budget.  

The federal poverty guidelines as of 12-31-2023: 

 

 



Size of Family Unit    Poverty Guidelines  

1     $14,580 
2     $19,720 
3    $24,860 
4     $30,000 
5     $35,140 
6     $40,280 
7     $45,420 
8     $50,560 
For each additional person  $5,140 

 6.  Meet additional eligibility requirements as determined by the township board, including: 
in addition to being at or below the federal poverty guideline for income, an applicant 
may own up to $100,000 in real and personal property. 

BE IT ALSO RESOLVED that the board of review shall follow the above-stated policy and 
federal guidelines in granting or denying an exemption.  
 
The foregoing resolution offered by Trustee ___________ and supported by Trustee 
____________. 
 
Upon roll-call vote, the following members voted:   
 
 
AYE:           ABSTAIN:   
NAY:           ABSENT:     
 
 
The Supervisor declared the motion passed and Resolution 2024-01 duly adopted. 
 
 
Certification: 
 
I, Michelle McQueer, the undersigned Clerk of the Township of Bridgewater, hereby certify that 
the foregoing resolution is a true and complete copy of a resolution adopted at a regular meeting 
of the Board of Trustees of the Township of Bridgewater, held on January 4, 2024 the original of 
which is on file in my office, and that notice of such meeting was given, and the meeting was 
conducted, pursuant to and in compliance with Act No. 267, Michigan Public acts of 1976, as 
amended.  
 
 
____________________________________ 
Michelle McQueer 
Bridgewater Township Clerk 
 



XELA PACK

DISCHARGE 

PARMETER December 5, 

2023 Results in 

mg/L

December 6, 

2023 Results in 

mg/L

December 7, 

2023 Results 

in mg/L

December 8, 

2023 Results in 

mg/L
Biochemical Oxygen Demand BOD 150 220 239 189

Ammonia NH3 14.2 9.88 17.2 3.21

Phosphorus TP 6.27 5.23 8.3 8.85

Total Suspended Solids TSS 69.0 31 64 71

Acidity/Alkalinity (pH) pH 7.55 SU 7.40 SU 7.44 SU 7.63 SU



23 

 Any wastewater which causes a hazard to human life or creates a public nuisance. 

 Any unpolluted water including, but not limited to, stormwater, groundwater, roof water, 
or noncontact cooling water. 

 Any waters or wastes containing suspended solids or any constituent of such character 
and quantity that unusual attention or expense is required to handle such materials at 
the POTW. 

 Any waste from individual sewage disposal systems; except that waste from any 
individual sewage disposal system may be disposed of directly into a Sanitary Sewer 
upon entering into an agreement with the Township which agreement shall specify the 
site of disposal, sewage disposal charge, and such other conditions as may be 
required to satisfy the sanitation and health requirements of the Township. For the 
purpose of this subsection, "individual sewage disposal system" is defined to include 
every means of disposing of industrial, commercial, household, domestic, or other 
water-carried sanitary waste or sewage other than a public sanitary sewer. 

 Any sludge, precipitate, or congealed substances resulting from an industrial or 
commercial process, or resulting from the pretreatment of wastewater or air pollutants. 

 Any trucked or hauled wastewater, except as specifically allowed by the Supervisor. 

8.2. Specific Pollutant Limitations.  

 Conventional Pollutants. Except as authorized by the Supervisor, no person shall 
discharge wastewater containing in excess of: 

i Two hundred and forty (240) mg/l BOD. 

ii Two hundred and forty (240) mg/l total suspended solids. 

iii Twenty-five (25) mg/l ammonia-nitrogen. 

iv Five (5) mg/l total phosphorus. 

 Should any other substances, either individually or in combination with other 
substances, interfere with the sewage treatment process or cause damage to the 
receiving waters or affect the sanitary or storm sewer system, the allowable 
concentration of these substances will be reduced by order of the Supervisor. Should 
the Supervisor determine that the above limits can be raised without damage to the 
POTW exceeding the State or Federal limits, then the Supervisor may raise the limits, 
and shall determine the individual concentrations depending on quantity of flow, 
equipment, capabilities, reliability of testing, etc. 

 If any waters are discharged or are proposed to be discharged to the Public Sewers, 
which contain the substances or possess the characteristics enumerated above, and 
which in the judgment of the Township may have a deleterious effect upon the sewers, 
Sewage Works, processes, equipment, or receiving waters, or which otherwise create 
a hazard to life or constitute a public nuisance, the Township may: 

i Reject the wastes; 

ii Require pretreatment to the level defined as "Normal Domestic Sewage; 



























RE: Xela Pack data

From: Tom Thompson (thompsont@vil-manchester.org)

To: bridgewatertwpsupervisor@yahoo.com; msessions@vil-manchester.org

Date: Wednesday, December 27, 2023 at 01:24 PM EST

Looks like the samples are within ordinance values other than the phosphorus, but even that is not
unreasonable.
Tom
 

From: Laurie Fromhart [mailto:bridgewatertwpsupervisor@yahoo.com]
Sent: Wednesday, December 27, 2023 11:56 AM
To: Tom Thompson <thompsont@vil-manchester.org>; Michael Sessions <msessions@vil-
manchester.org>
Subject: Fw: Xela Pack data

 

FYI. 

Laurie Fromhart
Bridgewater Township Supervisor
734-223-2766

 

----- Forwarded Message -----

From: "d13500@earthlink.net" <d13500@earthlink.net>

To: "bridgewatertwpsupervisor@yahoo.com" <bridgewatertwpsupervisor@yahoo.com>

Cc: "GEC" <gec223@earthlink.net>

Sent: Tue, Dec 26, 2023 at 2:21 PM

Subject: Xela Pack data

Hello Laurie,

 

I have attached the analytical data along with a spreadsheet.

 

I did not see anything that would cause a concern.  The samples were collected from 8am to 8pm.  First sample
Monday 8am start to 8pm stop.  Collection was every 15 minutes.

 

Let me know if you have any questions.

 

mailto:d13500@earthlink.net
mailto:d13500@earthlink.net
mailto:bridgewatertwpsupervisor@yahoo.com
mailto:bridgewatertwpsupervisor@yahoo.com
mailto:gec223@earthlink.net


I will send the invoice this week.

 

Thank you,

David Cook

 

 

Global Environmental Consulting, LLC.

223 West Michigan Ave.

Clinton, MI 49236

517 456-6881

fax: 517 456-9952

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



17 

required by Subparagraph a. of this paragraph shall also indicate the mass of 
pollutants regulated by Pretreatment Standards in the effluent of the User. 

 If a User, subject to reporting requirements, monitors any pollutant more frequently 
than required by the Township, using Standard Laboratory Procedures, the results of 
this additional monitoring shall also be included in the Periodic Compliance Report. 

 If sampling performed by a User indicated a violation, the User shall notify the 
Township within twenty-four (24) hours of becoming aware of the violation. The User 
shall also repeat the sampling and submit the results of re-analysis to the Township 
within 30 days after becoming aware of the violation, except when the Township will 
be performing scheduled surveillance sampling/analysis within this thirty- (30) day 
period. 

5.6. Notification of Hazardous Waste Discharges. All Users shall notify the Supervisor, the POTW, 
U.S. EPA Regional Waste Management Division Director, and the State Hazardous Waste 
Authority in writing of any discharge into the POTW of a substance which would be a hazardous 
waste under 40 CFR 261 if disposed via other means. Notification details, as well as allowable 
exemptions, shall be in accordance with 40 CFR 403.12(p). In the case of any new regulations 
under Section 3001 of RCRA identifying additional characteristics of hazardous waste or listing 
any additional substance as a hazardous waste, the User must provide notification of the 
discharge of such substance within ninety (90) days of the effective date of such regulations. In 
the case of any notification of hazardous waste discharges, the User shall further certify that it 
has a program in place to reduce the volume and toxicity of hazardous wastes generated to the 
degree it has determined to be economically practical. 

5.7. Monitoring Facilities. The Township may require to be provided and operated at the User's own 
expense, monitoring facilities to allow inspection, sampling, and flow measurement of the 
Building Sewer and/or internal drainage systems. For commercial users located within strip malls, 
each business may be required to construct individual monitoring facilities. The monitoring facility 
should normally be situated on the User's premises, but the Township may, when such a location 
would be impractical or cause undue hardship on the User, allow the facility to be constructed in 
the public street or sidewalk area and located so that it will not be obstructed by landscaping or 
parked vehicles. There shall be ample room in or near such sampling manhole or facility to allow 
accurate sampling and preparation of samples for analysis. The facility, sampling, and measuring 
equipment shall be maintained at all times in a safe and proper operating condition at the expense 
of the User. Whether constructed on public or private property, the sampling and monitoring 
facilities shall be provided in accordance with plans and specifications submitted to and approved 
by the Township, and all applicable local construction standards and specifications. Construction 
shall be completed within ninety (90) days following written notification by the Township. 

5.8. Inspection and Sampling. The Township shall inspect the facilities of any User to ascertain 
whether the purpose of this Ordinance is being met and the User is complying with all 
requirements. Persons or occupants of premises where wastewater is created or discharged 
shall allow the Township or its representative ready access at all reasonable times to all parts of 
the premises for the purposes of inspection, sampling, records examination, records copying, or 
in the performance of any of their duties. The Township, MDEQ, and U.S. EPA shall have the 
right to set up on the User's property such devices as are necessary to conduct sampling 
inspection, compliance monitoring, and/or metering operations. Where a User has security 
measures in force which would require proper identification and clearance before entry into their 
premises, the User shall make necessary arrangements with their security guards so that upon 
presentation of suitable identification, personnel from the Township, MDEQ, U.S. EPA, or 
designated representative will be permitted to enter, without delay, for the purposes of performing 
their specific responsibilities. 



18 

5.9. Pretreatment. Industrial Users shall provide necessary wastewater treatment as required to 
comply with this Ordinance and shall achieve compliance with all National Categorical 
Pretreatment Standards within the time limitations as specified by the Federal Pretreatment 
Regulations and as required by the Township. Any facilities required to pretreat wastewater to a 
level acceptable to the Township shall be provided, operated, and maintained at the User's 
expense. Detailed plans showing the pretreatment facilities and operating procedures shall be 
submitted to the Township for review, and shall be approved by the Township before construction 
of the facility. The review of such plans and operating procedures will in no way relieve the User 
from the responsibility of modifying the facility as necessary to produce an effluent acceptable to 
the Township under the provisions of this Ordinance. Any subsequent changes in the 
pretreatment facilities or method of operation shall be reported to and be acceptable to the 
Township prior to the User's initiation of the changes. 

The Township will annually publish in the major local newspaper a list of the Users which were 
in Significant Noncompliance with any Pretreatment Requirements or Standards at least once 
during the twelve (12) previous months. The notification will identify the nature of the violation 
and summarize any enforcement actions taken against the User(s) during the same twelve (12) 
months. 

All records relating to compliance with Pretreatment Standards shall be made available to officials 
of the U.S. EPA or MDEQ upon request. 

5.10. Confidential Information. Information and data on a User obtained from reports, questionnaires, 
permit applications, permits and monitoring programs, and from inspections shall be available to 
the public or other governmental agency without restriction unless the User specifically requests 
and is able to demonstrate to the satisfaction of the Township that the release of such information 
would divulge information, processes or methods of production entitled to protection as trade 
secrets of the User. 

When requested by the person furnishing a report, the portion of a report which might disclose 
trade secrets or secret processes shall not be made available for inspection by the public but 
shall be made available upon written request to governmental agencies for uses related to this 
Ordinance, the NPDES Permit, or the Pretreatment Programs provided, however, that such 
portions of a report shall be available for use by the State or any State agency in judicial review 
or enforcement proceedings involving the person furnishing the report. Wastewater constituents 
and characteristics will not be recognized as confidential information. 

Information accepted by the Township as confidential shall not be transmitted to any 
governmental agency or to the general public by the Township until and unless a ten (10) day 
notification is given to the User. 

5.11. Signatory Requirements. All reports required by this Section shall be signed by the Authorized 
Representative of Industrial User and include the following certification statement: 

"I certify under penalty of law that this document and all attachments were prepared under my 
direction or supervision in accordance with a system designed to assure that qualified personnel 
properly gather and evaluate the information submitted. Based on my inquiry of the person or 
persons who manage the system, or those persons directly responsible for gathering the 
information, the information submitted is, to the best of my knowledge and belief, true, accurate, 
and complete. I am aware that there are significant penalties for submitting false information, 
including the possibility of fine and imprisonment for knowing violations." 

If the Authorized Representative of Industrial User changes because a different individual has 
responsibility for the overall operation of the facility or for environmental matters of the company, 
a new authorization satisfying the requirements of Section 2.3 must be submitted to the Township 
prior to or together with any reports to be signed by that representative. 



35 

15.2. The Township shall not be liable for any injuries to persons or damage to property resulting from 
any work performed by private contractors hired to install, repair or maintain any Lateral Lines. 

15.3. Any claim for damages as a result of an overflow or back up of the sewage disposal system shall 
follow the procedures and requirements as set forth in Act No. 222 of the Public Acts of 2001 for 
the State of Michigan. 

15.4. The Township will maintain and carry insurance on all publicly owned assets of the Sewer 
System, of the kinds and in the amounts normally carried by public utility companies and 
municipalities engaged in the operation of Sewage Disposal Systems. All monies received for 
losses under any such insurance policies shall be used solely for the replacement and restoration 
of the property damaged or destroyed. 

Section 16 Power and Authority of Inspectors 

The Supervisor and other duly authorized employees of the Township acting as his duly authorized agent, 
bearing proper credentials and identification, shall be permitted to enter upon such properties as may be 
necessary for the purposes of inspection, observation, measurement, sampling, and testing in accordance 
with provisions of this Ordinance. 

Section 17 Protection from Damage 

No unauthorized person shall enter or maliciously, willfully or negligently break, damage, destroy, uncover, 
deface, or tamper with any structure, appurtenance, or equipment which is a part of the Public Sewer 
system. 

Section 18 Enforcement/Penalties 

18.1. Administrative Remedies  

 The Township may suspend wastewater treatment services to any User when such 
suspension is necessary, in the opinion of the Township, in order to stop an actual or 
threatened discharge which presents or may present an imminent or substantial 
endangerment to the health or welfare of persons or the environment, causes or may 
cause interference to the POTW, or causes or may cause the Township to violate any 
condition of its NPDES Permit. 

 The Township may revoke, suspend, or terminate the wastewater discharge permit of 
any User which (a) fails to accurately report the wastewater constituents and 
characteristics of its discharge; (b) fails to report significant changes in wastewater 
constituents or characteristics; (c) refuses reasonable access to the User's premises 
by representatives of the Township for the purpose of inspection or monitoring; or (d) 
violates the conditions of this Ordinance or any final judicial order entered with respect 
thereto. 

 Whenever the Township finds that a User has violated any provision of this Ordinance, 
Industrial Waste Permit, or Order issued hereunder, or other Pretreatment Standard 
or Requirement, the Supervisor will issue a Notice of Violation to formally document 
the noncompliance. This document will specify the nature of the violation, establish a 
date by which the violation shall be corrected, and notify the affected User that failure 
to correct the violation would constitute a further violation which may result in additional 
enforcement action. A Notice of Violation will be sent via first-class mail or personally 
served on an Authorized Representative of the User. 



36 

 When the Township finds that a User has violated any provision of this Ordinance, 
Industrial Waste Permit, or Order issued hereunder or other Pretreatment Standard or 
Requirement, the Supervisor may issue an Administrative Order to Show Cause 
requiring the affected User to appear at a hearing to demonstrate why escalated 
enforcement action should not be pursued. This document will specify the nature of 
the violation, establish the time and place for the hearing, and notify the affected User 
that failure to comply would constitute a violation of this Ordinance which may result in 
additional enforcement action. An Order to Show Cause will be issued at least ten (10) 
days prior to the hearing and will be sent via certified mail/return receipt requested or 
personally served on an Authorized Representative of the User. 

 When the Township and an affected User agree to a violation and to the remedial 
solution, the Supervisor may issue an Order of Consent or similar document to formally 
establish such agreement. This document will specify the nature of the violation and 
required actions, such as compliance schedules, stipulated fines, additional self-
monitoring, and improvements to treatment facilities or management practices 
designed to control the User's discharge to the sewer. An Order of Consent will be 
sent via certified mail/return receipt requested, or personally served on an Authorized 
Representative of the User, and will require signatures of representatives from both 
the Township, and the affected User. 

An Order of Consent or similar document shall have the same force and effect as other 
administrative orders issued by the Township pursuant to this Ordinance, shall be 
judicially enforceable, and shall not modify the requirements or extend the deadline for 
compliance established by a Pretreatment Standard or Requirement. Receipt, or non-
receipt, of an Order of Consent or similar document shall in no way relieve the affected 
User of any and all liability associated with the violation. Issuance of a Consent Order 
or similar document shall not be a bar against, or a prerequisite for, any other 
enforcement actions by the Township, against the affected User. 

 When the Township and affected User do not agree to the violation or to the remedial 
solution, the Supervisor may issue an Order to Achieve Compliance. This document 
will specify the nature of the violation and include required actions such as compliance 
schedules, stipulated fines, additional self-monitoring, and improvements to treatment 
facilities or management practices designed to control the User's discharge to the 
sewer. An Order to Achieve Compliance will be issued unilaterally in that terms need 
not be agreed to by the affected User and will be sent via certified mail/return receipt 
requested, or personally served on an Authorized Representative of the User. 

An Order to Achieve Compliance shall have the same force and effect as other 
administrative orders issued by the Township, pursuant to this Ordinance, shall be 
judicially enforceable, and shall not modify the requirements or extend the deadline for 
compliance established by a Pretreatment Standard or Requirement. Receipt, or non-
receipt, of an Order to Achieve Compliance shall in no way relieve the affected User of 
any and all liability associated with the violation. Issuance of an Order to Achieve 
Compliance shall not be a bar against, or a prerequisite for, any other enforcement 
actions by the Township, against the affected User. 

 When the Township finds that a User has violated and continues to violate any 
provision of this Ordinance, Industrial Waste Permit, or Order issued hereunder, or 
other Pretreatment Standard or Requirement, the Supervisor, and the Township 
Attorney may jointly issue a Cease and Desist Order requiring the affected User to 
eliminate the violation within twenty-four (24) hours or face suspension of sewer 
service. This document will specify the nature of the violation, and require that the 
violation cease. If the violation has not been corrected within twenty-four (24) hours 
following issuance of the order, the Township may suspend sewer service without 



37 

further notice until such time as the affected User is able to demonstrate to the 
Township that it can comply with the discharge requirements. A Cease and Desist 
Order will be personally served on an Authorized Representative of the User. 

 Whenever the Township finds that a User's discharge is in violation of any provision of 
this Ordinance or any permit issued hereunder and that the violation creates or 
threatens to create an emergency situation such as damage to the POTW, hazard to 
the receiving stream,  endangerment to the public health and safety, or violation of any 
condition of the NPDES permit issued to the Township, the Supervisor, , and Township 
Attorney will jointly issue an Emergency Cease and Desist Order notifying the affected 
User to eliminate the violating discharge immediately or face service severance via a 
temporary plug in its sewer connection at any time and without further warning. This 
document will specify the nature of the violation, and require that the violating 
discharge cease until such time as the affected User is able to demonstrate to the 
Township that it can comply with the discharge requirements. This document will also 
establish the time and place for a hearing where the affected User shall present a 
written statement regarding the causes of the violation and measures taken to prevent 
future occurrences, and further will notify the affected User of its liability for any costs 
incurred by the Township to conduct this enforcement action. An Emergency Cease 
and Desist Order will be personally served to an Authorized Representative of the 
User, or may be delivered verbally via telephone to an Authorized Representative of 
the User and then served personally. 

 Except for emergency situations covered under this Section, whenever the Township 
finds that a User's continuing violation warrants revocation of its permit or privilege to 
discharge into the wastewater system, the Supervisor and Township Attorney will 
jointly issue a Notice of Termination to warn of the impending suspension of the sewer 
service up to and including severance via temporary plug in the affected User's sewer 
connection. This document will specify the date and the time of scheduled service 
suspension in order to allow the affected User to either voluntarily cease the violating 
discharge or arrange appropriate actions such as production shut-down or alternative 
means of wastewater disposal. This document will also establish the time and place 
for a hearing where the affected User shall present a written statement regarding the 
causes of the violation and measures taken to prevent future occurrences, and further 
will notify the affected User of its liability for any costs incurred by the Township to 
conduct this enforcement action.  

A Notice of Termination will be personally served on an Authorized Representative of 
the User at least ten (10) days before the scheduled service suspension. 

 Receipt, or non-receipt, of a(n): 

i Notice of Violation;  

ii Order to Show Cause; 

iii Cease and Desist Order; 

iv Emergency Cease and Desist Order; or 

v Notice of Termination 

shall in no way relieve the affected User of any and all liability associated with the 
violation and shall not be a bar against, or a prerequisite for, any other enforcement 
actions by the Township against the affected User. 



38 

 In addition to the sanctions, orders, liabilities, and other remedies prescribed under this 
Section, a User shall be liable to the Township for any and all fines, penalties, and 
associated legal and other costs incurred or expended by the Township as the result 
of any violation of the Township’s NPDES permit that is attributable, in whole or in part, 
to the User's violation of this Ordinance or a permit issued to the User hereunder. 

 Rights of Appeal. Except for emergency situations covered under Subparagraph 2.f. 
of this section, any User desiring to dispute a Notice of Violation or order of the 
Township, pursuant to this Ordinance, including but not limited to fines, may present a 
written request for reconsideration. Such a request shall be submitted to the Township 
Supervisor within ten (10) days of first being notified of the corresponding order for all 
but a Notice of Termination, where such a request shall be submitted within five (5) 
days of notification. If, in the opinion of the Township Supervisor the request has merit, 
he will convene a hearing on the matter as soon as possible to collect testimony of 
appropriate persons, take evidence, and render a final determination. In the event the 
affected User's appeal is unsuccessful; any original fine will become immediately due 
and the Township may also add any additional costs incurred to administer this appeal. 
Further appeal of the Township Supervisor’s final determination shall be governed by 
applicable State law. 

Submittal of an appeal shall in no way relieve the affected User of any and all liability 
associated with the violation. An appeal shall not stay the corresponding order, or limit 
any other enforcement proceedings by the Township against the affected User. 

18.2. Judicial Penalties. When the Township finds that a person has violated or continues to violate 
any provision of this Ordinance, Industrial Waste Permit, or order issued hereunder, or other 
Pretreatment Standard or Requirement, the Township may petition the Circuit Court of 
Washtenaw County for appropriate legal and/or equitable relief. 

 Injunctive Relief. A person who violates or continues to violate any provision of this 
Ordinance, Industrial Waste Permit, or Order issued hereunder, or other Pretreatment 
Standard or Requirement will be liable to issuance of a preliminary injunction or a 
permanent injunction, or both as may be appropriate. This action will be sought to 
restrain or compel activities on the part of the affected User. 

A petition for injunctive relief shall in no way relieve the affected User of any and all 
liability associated with the violation. A petition for injunctive relief shall not be a bar 
against, or a prerequisite for, any other actions by the Township against the affected 
User. 

 Civil Penalties. A User who has violated or continues to violate any provision of this 
Ordinance, Industrial Waste Permit, or Order issued hereunder, or other Pretreatment 
Standard or Requirement, will be liable for a civil penalty of up to one thousand dollars 
($1,000) per violation. Each day during which the violation occurred or continues to 
occur may be deemed a separate distinct violation and, in the case of a violation of 
monthly or other long-term average discharge limits, the penalty may be assessed for 
each day during the period of the averaging. The affected User will also be liable for 
all costs incurred by the Township for associated enforcement action such as 
reasonable attorney's fees, court costs, additional sampling, and monitoring expenses, 
as well as costs of any environmental damage and any fines imposed upon the 
Township for NPDES permit violations that result in whole or in part from the User's 
violation and expenses associated with remediation of sites thereby contaminated. The 
Township Attorney may petition the court to impose, assess, and recover sums up to 
this limit of liability. In determining the appropriate amount of civil penalty to seek, the 
Township may take into account all relevant circumstances including, but not limited 
to, the extent of harm caused by the violation, the magnitude and duration of the 



39 

violation, any economic benefit gained by the affected User as a result of the violation, 
corrective actions implemented or proposed to be implemented by the affected User, 
and history of compliance or noncompliance by the affected User. 

A suit for civil penalties shall not be a bar against, or a prerequisite for, any other 
actions by the Township against the affected User. 

 Criminal Prosecution. Any person who: 

i violates any provision of this Ordinance, Industrial Waste Permit, or Order 
issued hereunder, or other Pretreatment Standard or Requirement; or  

ii knowingly makes any false statements, representations, or certifications in any 
application, record, report, plan, or other document filed or required to be 
maintained pursuant to this Ordinance, Industrial Waste Permit, or Order 
issued hereunder, or Pretreatment Standard or Requirement; or  

iii falsifies, tampers with, or knowingly renders inaccurate any data device or test 
method used to monitor a discharge pursuant to this Ordinance, Industrial 
Waste Permit, or Order issued hereunder, or Pretreatment Standard or 
Requirement 

is guilty of a misdemeanor and may be punished by a monetary penalty of up to five 
hundred dollars ($500) per violation, imprisonment for up to ninety (90) days, or both. 
Each day during which the violation occurred or continues to occur may be deemed a 
separate distinct violation and, in the case of a violation of monthly or other long-term 
average discharge limits, the penalty may be assessed for each day during the period 
of averaging. 

Criminal prosecution shall not be a bar against, or a prerequisite for, any other actions 
by the Township against the affected User. 

Section 19 Records Retention 

19.1. The Township shall maintain and keep proper books of records and accounts, separate from all 
other records and accounts, in which shall be made full and correct entries of all transactions 
relating to the sanitary system. 

19.2. All Industrial Users subject to this Ordinance shall retain and preserve for no less than three (3) 
years, any records, books, documents, memoranda, reports, correspondence, and any and all 
summaries thereto, relating to monitoring, sampling, and chemical analyses made by or on behalf 
of a User in connection with its discharge. All records that pertain to matters which are the subject 
of Administrative Adjustment or any other enforcement or litigation activities brought by the 
Township pursuant hereto shall be retained and preserved by the User until all enforcement 
activities have concluded and all periods of limitation with respect to any and all appeals have 
expired. 

19.3. Classification of old and new Industrial Users shall also be reviewed annually by the Township. 

Section 20 Audits 

The Township will cause an annual audit of such books of record and account for the preceding operating 
year to be made by a recognized independent certified public accountant, and will supply such audit report 
to authorized public officials on request. In conjunction with the audit, there shall be an annual review of the 



2024 Estimates

From: Freeman, Roark (freemanr@wcroads.org)

To: bridgewatertwpsupervisor@yahoo.com

Cc: lapea@wcroads.org

Date: Wednesday, December 20, 2023 at 03:27 PM EST

Hello, Laurie, here are the new 2024 es�mates we discussed.
All the projects include some Forestry, Gradall and Vactor work on exis�ng culverts.
Most of the moneys will be going to materials.
 
Kies South     Clinton to Burmeister Rd 8 inch li� of 23a C.I.P.  3900 ton  $109,000.00 2023 prices
Kies North     Burmeister to Aus�n Rd 8 inch li� of 23a C.I.P.  5400 ton   $148,000.00 2023 prices
Hogan Rd       Logan to Wilbur Rd           8-inch li� of 23a C.I.P.  1500 ton   $51,000.00   2023 prices
Allen Rd         Hogan to Bartlet Rd         8 inch li� of 23a C.I.P.    2400 ton   $70,000.00  2023 prices
 
Feel free to reach out to me with any ques�ons.
Thanks
 
 

Roark Freeman
District 4 Foreman
 
Washtenaw County Road Commission
555 N. Zeeb Road, Ann Arbor, Michigan
 
Main: (734) 761-1500
wcroads.org | Follow us on Facebook

 
 

http://www.wcroads.org/
https://www.facebook.com/washtenawroads/


ARPA FUNDS AWARD $181, 543.75

ARKONA ROAD CULVERT $16,067.82

BEMIS ROAD CULVERT, EAST OF ERNST ROAD $2,875

BEMIS ROAD CULVERT, WEST OF EISMAN ROAD $10,750

SHERIDAN ROAD CULVERT $15,000

TOTAL CULVERT PROJECTS $44,692.82

REMAINING ARPA FUNDS TO BE OBLIGATED $136,850.93





Board of review Q&A. Board of Review Ques�ons and
Answers offers BOR informa�on, including their role and
authori�es, and Michigan law that governs them.
Poverty exemp�on. Bulle�n 22 of 2023—Poverty
Exemp�on and Bulle�n 23 of 2023—Poverty Exemp�on
Audit cover statutory changes to the poverty exemp�on
and guidance on the development and implementa�on of
an audit program for these “extended” poverty exemp�ons.
Qualified errors. Bulle�n 24 of 2023—Qualified Errors
addresses July and December BOR authority to correct
qualified errors for current year and immediately preceding
year.

What’s next for renewable
energy? Join upcoming MTA
webinar to learn more
New laws impac�ng solar, wind and ba�ery
storage u�lity-scale renewable energy si�ng
le� a great number of ques�ons and
uncertainty among townships and their residents. What is the new
process for state si�ng approval? When does a developer s�ll need
to go through the township? What is a compa�ble renewable
energy ordinance—and what needs to be in it? Join MTA legal
counsel on Jan. 17 at noon for an hour-long Now You Know
webinar, "Renewable Energy Si�ng: What's Next?", and get an
overview of the laws, the impact on your township’s exis�ng
ordinances, public safety and infrastructure considera�ons, and
more. Can’t make the date? We’ll record it so you can watch when
it works in your schedule. Click here to register now.

Reminders from BOE
Upcoming early vo�ng deadlines—A number of early vo�ng items
have Friday, Dec. 29 deadlines, involving township boards and
clerks. Refer to the state Bureau of Elec�ons (BOE) Feb. 27
Presiden�al Primary Calendar for these, and addi�onal deadlines,
as the first required early vo�ng period approaches.

Updated elec�on records reten�on schedule—An updated
Elec�on Records Reten�on Schedule is now available. If created,
any footage must be retained for 30 days a�er the crea�on date.
Drop box collec�on records must be retained for two years a�er
the elec�on cer�fica�on date. As a voter’s Qualified Voter File

Jan. 31 and throughout
February—Board of
Review Training

MTA QUICK LINKS
Answer Center
Training
Advocacy
Classifieds
Community Connec�on
Webcasts
Store
Township Governance
Academy
Allied Service Providers
NATaT

ALLIED SERVICE
PROVIDERS

* Bauckham, Thall, Seeber
Kaufman& Koches PC

* Consumers Energy

* Fahey Schultz Burzych
Rhodes PLC

* Foster, Swift, Collins &
Smith, P.C.

* Hartleb Agency

* ITC Holdings Corp.

* Rosati, Schultz, Joppich &
Amtsbuechler, P.C.

https://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001Pb56SP-DIHr5j9hKhZk5Fy7NxwoDPmJq_FlANrPXXtPSn_VOzph-MI0PSFhWjvEs4zaRPq469AtYaOGUa2yZcu5wQ8ZMjlZBETRspM_I2cOOhUiCcfVPvWFvTZdV_-jvxXObNBS9EN-0uqfd09fuxpE0htmJlu6W-SZKuDarsrNO2QzrTr-z9mvvzEv4shiR9VYkOcOtOutVCpOe_oFKXDtTW1-vD1noewJYWdcOV6lehTUlZ503a9M4FAZEvBAd4LL9GKyTb2fyi2RyedZyN3CbALbiOARP9h65ZJF8QkswQYmE897L2-UUWFeraquntOngoNfqibHu5E1fInCGZMsBaRVfuvXIHuuZDSqNag0RauDHbIf-wxoh2vdRRF-rc87aXN62IVI0X-8jDFvZkU30Ui0DwhmFM8Clo_LuH-NBrRkzoGmBzd4h1NNwVAVnLr2WK7P9u4nMhQyw8kQ-nZX_g5rv8CMBDb2oSknlGvsV7-CcjeuRWNmtc9vqnd9Jn8-eUX1TgNBYtAFzpqZhOX9WwtcJh6LicZrOjueEP4iFD5HoFJdxxuV-6kJf8qssCMlqp1oq7wIzH3vK9yJ_Vxy5LLmgZjIY_r2wgO1TpeRlqRJb9Y8Q9EcECycowmZoFax2JpOx03An7zUM07XM0T30jv0ZFcwJu1k7QUQZqVgQf3jpZvSANfUQ0dde7ryRwCy3_L_u_IrH0HFlP6ZCSS7xFSH1QHEbOaYPXkSCKhIuueo1AnTOsEGeOrKI1Uyi3-6PNvZXqkNMS3T7Qiw_y79RJ9sidG5OIGpGfENWw28Cdv5bccwQ2-HrTpQOo8LGbgGwXdg96YIVl9oCG0I2LyCj4uKWA22BB436KQBhC6CRVFoCV1Q51GMfrJWYowcvFtdanYOg5ipp1FKoU802pAuODpVpgY6BnEelG1zE0NOYwe-bWFlBPhXbVFlFmmTktTur7BrYiJWBjyGS6cf-lHj0u7rn0qy3NSN-EksYh9LxhjWQuJ4R47XTD0NgOpRvZCLYjj2l19eTnsDDmRQeEW-w62PKLRiVijAG5hPAQ1wWSLEoYybbQDl-QJeGKY_6Unxh3UldxMvT7ZSM-vj0U04hW_wfSSt2r4CeH-YAqVOotg0uLT3fuzjhING3h0-TKWFgqg3AoKfnlg2a2uSm5ckMg2Ntvx6I6fCyUo9kzMqMVGDIQ3e0vnYMZ8gQHVtDbekndSOl_pgzS1vbVsmL5aGACJPHNRx0YMdWXvyWt9xTR4t6hW_y4A==&c=taq4h6LX5bWStGlr2wqWQDSumBsR8B6vyqNTSHm0mEdg_Jub9W8EhQ==&ch=E3jYIHQNbM23JLOmQvxq7btJUyA5XWA4XCXseJrY2By3lW0TTfRRBQ==
https://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001Pb56SP-DIHr5j9hKhZk5Fy7NxwoDPmJq_FlANrPXXtPSn_VOzph-MI0PSFhWjvEs4zaRPq469AtYaOGUa2yZcu5wQ8ZMjlZBETRspM_I2cOOhUiCcfVPvWFvTZdV_-jvxXObNBS9EN-0uqfd09fuxpE0htmJlu6W-SZKuDarsrNO2QzrTr-z9mvvzEv4shiR9VYkOcOtOutVCpOe_oFKXDtTW1-vD1noewJYWdcOV6lehTUlZ503a9M4FAZEvBAd4LL9GKyTb2fyi2RyedZyN3CbALbiOARP9h65ZJF8QkswQYmE897L2-UUWFeraquntOngoNfqibHu5E1fInCGZMsBaRVfuvXIHuuZDSqNag0RauDHbIf-wxoh2vdRRF-rc87aXN62IVI0X-8jDFvZkU30Ui0DwhmFM8Clo_LuH-NBrRkzoGmBzd4h1NNwVAVnLr2WK7P9u4nMhQyw8kQ-nZX_g5rv8CMBDb2oSknlGvsV7-CcjeuRWNmtc9vqnd9Jn8-eUX1TgNBYtAFzpqZhOX9WwtcJh6LicZrOjueEP4iFD5HoFJdxxuV-6kJf8qssCMlqp1oq7wIzH3vK9yJ_Vxy5LLmgZjIY_r2wgO1TpeRlqRJb9Y8Q9EcECycowmZoFax2JpOx03An7zUM07XM0T30jv0ZFcwJu1k7QUQZqVgQf3jpZvSANfUQ0dde7ryRwCy3_L_u_IrH0HFlP6ZCSS7xFSH1QHEbOaYPXkSCKhIuueo1AnTOsEGeOrKI1Uyi3-6PNvZXqkNMS3T7Qiw_y79RJ9sidG5OIGpGfENWw28Cdv5bccwQ2-HrTpQOo8LGbgGwXdg96YIVl9oCG0I2LyCj4uKWA22BB436KQBhC6CRVFoCV1Q51GMfrJWYowcvFtdanYOg5ipp1FKoU802pAuODpVpgY6BnEelG1zE0NOYwe-bWFlBPhXbVFlFmmTktTur7BrYiJWBjyGS6cf-lHj0u7rn0qy3NSN-EksYh9LxhjWQuJ4R47XTD0NgOpRvZCLYjj2l19eTnsDDmRQeEW-w62PKLRiVijAG5hPAQ1wWSLEoYybbQDl-QJeGKY_6Unxh3UldxMvT7ZSM-vj0U04hW_wfSSt2r4CeH-YAqVOotg0uLT3fuzjhING3h0-TKWFgqg3AoKfnlg2a2uSm5ckMg2Ntvx6I6fCyUo9kzMqMVGDIQ3e0vnYMZ8gQHVtDbekndSOl_pgzS1vbVsmL5aGACJPHNRx0YMdWXvyWt9xTR4t6hW_y4A==&c=taq4h6LX5bWStGlr2wqWQDSumBsR8B6vyqNTSHm0mEdg_Jub9W8EhQ==&ch=E3jYIHQNbM23JLOmQvxq7btJUyA5XWA4XCXseJrY2By3lW0TTfRRBQ==
https://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001Pb56SP-DIHr5j9hKhZk5Fy7NxwoDPmJq_FlANrPXXtPSn_VOzph-MI0PSFhWjvEsOflkSACxtnKGzjuy8QJMD-bF2r5fPVKIJJBh_lfWDLlSf8gxLF99dyBxu5GjM7XCLV94qPdA6y-wnaKIrFJzTy6mttmUh_sZvY4QFxeZCC9Jnj2UZ_pRYGrK8QmwuIytrmYh4DaK5xtNItPjOa9L-l2iLeUxt1erdf1RPmGld7m-rHiroGXzcloCoGi5gjDLv-N902eDkeNXkk1wqmsgULnTyQraIB2qN75vOfDaYQ8KNK6_SrLGibblmWwLAuDgv0RhLNjw6Od15AebqTJ2UaSiShxfmhpf2_netBrnDXhXNE8Qtp1OiJSci0K5LSoN7miOAwpTX6Zrs-DY0MRG7SB2fmuaq3tpp0yEf_oC4Zj8nRe9gvKLQyT5tZjdz_Aq8nXVHBR5pQx_TqHr0Ja0Rv2W19jmXaTGeMMGMntVKDZOTrQdnlAkTF7XdjiStXGF5GFgd5HA6aFjwqgnXOTkLaRpUaP6SdgIdYr2huJhbsh8TTB44-5_qk5amkW6szh2YECxH3ctC48ySvQmqtgnKf4HVySwbTS_NdCZsGLxaCWkb45tkbqQ2kvxCrmNcCc3siUkxkp9w45he350AGPBbzFxjGJKGjZWzo1AjYkggz2643n7J7l7RiirmJD7axqChTfZZDw-4cuieyzP6AgCp4lNZ4Ul2adRC2Nmsw6uYN_EHowWUnGJXTr0x1vtcasfxscv7uH5SUgoeF6VkDD1ZtgJ6_D52If-8TgkGHb4zvs6vLF3yCppwtZju2g_OZrVTuwgdS2HWPFlavtaCIh3DgHj2p2TB5IS80hf_ATiwf-uLgAOTtpwxB_rJOmr7q9ABhkyk3ML-41CKSsftE0lM7SpQpDDqS6zw2PiQN5H41lVPiOhZNTHUrSA33Jr9bycokVN-2LtIv_2ui70FK4l4uUgkOKQDH3St_EazL9cnuJwojIMq1YjsCYFBT5pklCGUxyEoMk_BDwffJyzGC-RqYOFPpJW56Yn2TMOZA5qUWIbcSABkawKcm2TgVt1EVkxGdrZ_s-RYbw4qwEuUEjTxiJjwEwbLizQsIPUW0Jmq3yYT71QiE3OZumn8n-dULdxKHkKi53coeNSJNHm_cYTCmO5wJeXffpPUwaWmqSoE5L9McFn0ZbAMlHGSG9wpUzLYuebVs5roY1eeahVCUp7TPkg9HVVLodwnlELWgR_fN0=&c=taq4h6LX5bWStGlr2wqWQDSumBsR8B6vyqNTSHm0mEdg_Jub9W8EhQ==&ch=E3jYIHQNbM23JLOmQvxq7btJUyA5XWA4XCXseJrY2By3lW0TTfRRBQ==
https://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001Pb56SP-DIHr5j9hKhZk5Fy7NxwoDPmJq_FlANrPXXtPSn_VOzph-MI0PSFhWjvEsOflkSACxtnKGzjuy8QJMD-bF2r5fPVKIJJBh_lfWDLlSf8gxLF99dyBxu5GjM7XCLV94qPdA6y-wnaKIrFJzTy6mttmUh_sZvY4QFxeZCC9Jnj2UZ_pRYGrK8QmwuIytrmYh4DaK5xtNItPjOa9L-l2iLeUxt1erdf1RPmGld7m-rHiroGXzcloCoGi5gjDLv-N902eDkeNXkk1wqmsgULnTyQraIB2qN75vOfDaYQ8KNK6_SrLGibblmWwLAuDgv0RhLNjw6Od15AebqTJ2UaSiShxfmhpf2_netBrnDXhXNE8Qtp1OiJSci0K5LSoN7miOAwpTX6Zrs-DY0MRG7SB2fmuaq3tpp0yEf_oC4Zj8nRe9gvKLQyT5tZjdz_Aq8nXVHBR5pQx_TqHr0Ja0Rv2W19jmXaTGeMMGMntVKDZOTrQdnlAkTF7XdjiStXGF5GFgd5HA6aFjwqgnXOTkLaRpUaP6SdgIdYr2huJhbsh8TTB44-5_qk5amkW6szh2YECxH3ctC48ySvQmqtgnKf4HVySwbTS_NdCZsGLxaCWkb45tkbqQ2kvxCrmNcCc3siUkxkp9w45he350AGPBbzFxjGJKGjZWzo1AjYkggz2643n7J7l7RiirmJD7axqChTfZZDw-4cuieyzP6AgCp4lNZ4Ul2adRC2Nmsw6uYN_EHowWUnGJXTr0x1vtcasfxscv7uH5SUgoeF6VkDD1ZtgJ6_D52If-8TgkGHb4zvs6vLF3yCppwtZju2g_OZrVTuwgdS2HWPFlavtaCIh3DgHj2p2TB5IS80hf_ATiwf-uLgAOTtpwxB_rJOmr7q9ABhkyk3ML-41CKSsftE0lM7SpQpDDqS6zw2PiQN5H41lVPiOhZNTHUrSA33Jr9bycokVN-2LtIv_2ui70FK4l4uUgkOKQDH3St_EazL9cnuJwojIMq1YjsCYFBT5pklCGUxyEoMk_BDwffJyzGC-RqYOFPpJW56Yn2TMOZA5qUWIbcSABkawKcm2TgVt1EVkxGdrZ_s-RYbw4qwEuUEjTxiJjwEwbLizQsIPUW0Jmq3yYT71QiE3OZumn8n-dULdxKHkKi53coeNSJNHm_cYTCmO5wJeXffpPUwaWmqSoE5L9McFn0ZbAMlHGSG9wpUzLYuebVs5roY1eeahVCUp7TPkg9HVVLodwnlELWgR_fN0=&c=taq4h6LX5bWStGlr2wqWQDSumBsR8B6vyqNTSHm0mEdg_Jub9W8EhQ==&ch=E3jYIHQNbM23JLOmQvxq7btJUyA5XWA4XCXseJrY2By3lW0TTfRRBQ==
https://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001Pb56SP-DIHr5j9hKhZk5Fy7NxwoDPmJq_FlANrPXXtPSn_VOzph-MI0PSFhWjvEsSjZHR4myvurRScGuQSc4R9H9IVd9Eg2aADr4bc7wXlwOTsg_GpHJkjIc3CvTcplHFUClfUTNBuRlzIh7nofemVKMbVD6IgXuBA7vpz5aMKEj_hGrS5Up16EBO1zYpZKGYiUUD4o5SQEfKbelgXmGMgV4vZWYujCG2MLYB9guVxuLMRpMR1Uu_519hEWccswMPH4HEcqCBDQJkrm28a1VeQTn85-qcW3ePDD3WKZy_u14EHF6No77lmgr0Pj2kc-umVh0vMPLKnEt2wn7xtPVpHzIeNENR8woOAe6FTDuMApH0LN8Su5KPhrmpLUjsnVliOMEQsviKc-7QpwS7ERUwiNNY80q71z5WAgQNa_VVyewbetWjyooMER9cGls90uhoBiZ3IfKG08RVWX8YtFhNizsc-rmXcvo9WQUue_GX-We9zNr0CElkPubwbOb6KYq_88fNlZgagqL1nEAFVJkF9RARLaZVlVqRSzWu_C9Q9nyxQl80x0Y51zG799VfHuIFFyCLfQM2aajWnE5D25PHH0OGHa0i8Dpb9gsXOm20Vdtxbg4r1DBXClPXKWMHhxB7aQ759UclR-JOP6G-irMxSi970NJTqSBU-V9KqkMpLyKVvR-dbqi5r4kbd_1p-t95NRyNFsVJ8RdfyPhjymkyflpbwWSYMGKsegzh8xfwMmX0yugWa7Kl_LABpCsaem0sscMw_-lJRVU_eDybdF-6HIF31SDhIr201JFxaIgr0QxBIIH-iOb1phTFk1u8C3haoIS60iOV6QxRUqF8TLboUxKdlY538gVgU6hfZ0dn78u93a4SQR06GHVXnMiXjTwApCjKxNSvRb50eDz6Q_qsCunLY1cH7HguB04u0J5cKzBVE7_QmyAKvPPcRw1Q8j_XvpweldXlT_JW9KirWtRa2AxoYA7xgKWfWxgtEkD3xDzfbPOiRVcsVCQtJM6Tai3AnVxC7tLL12nKjti7whWHkp63j9OTXZ41SjTgAgkhmJM7zRU2GOybwxsB5lBBAqkZt_naiQaYAIaoSDBLaF6YcWCBgRPWvMDfQwI4k9BBFewnVx4MYAijSfCiia1_JZQJET9zVYkiQeKzyDyE6vTCzVWxCfoFfqeaErORTuyDAwQqzZW4F_fvatpVeuYOG_LoeZVRVHqfunQoejcRat7GBDOXyAR_OoQ7oJZyM16P71aj-Yh4ORRiIQscNQbUYO1&c=taq4h6LX5bWStGlr2wqWQDSumBsR8B6vyqNTSHm0mEdg_Jub9W8EhQ==&ch=E3jYIHQNbM23JLOmQvxq7btJUyA5XWA4XCXseJrY2By3lW0TTfRRBQ==
https://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001Pb56SP-DIHr5j9hKhZk5Fy7NxwoDPmJq_FlANrPXXtPSn_VOzph-MI0PSFhWjvEsSjZHR4myvurRScGuQSc4R9H9IVd9Eg2aADr4bc7wXlwOTsg_GpHJkjIc3CvTcplHFUClfUTNBuRlzIh7nofemVKMbVD6IgXuBA7vpz5aMKEj_hGrS5Up16EBO1zYpZKGYiUUD4o5SQEfKbelgXmGMgV4vZWYujCG2MLYB9guVxuLMRpMR1Uu_519hEWccswMPH4HEcqCBDQJkrm28a1VeQTn85-qcW3ePDD3WKZy_u14EHF6No77lmgr0Pj2kc-umVh0vMPLKnEt2wn7xtPVpHzIeNENR8woOAe6FTDuMApH0LN8Su5KPhrmpLUjsnVliOMEQsviKc-7QpwS7ERUwiNNY80q71z5WAgQNa_VVyewbetWjyooMER9cGls90uhoBiZ3IfKG08RVWX8YtFhNizsc-rmXcvo9WQUue_GX-We9zNr0CElkPubwbOb6KYq_88fNlZgagqL1nEAFVJkF9RARLaZVlVqRSzWu_C9Q9nyxQl80x0Y51zG799VfHuIFFyCLfQM2aajWnE5D25PHH0OGHa0i8Dpb9gsXOm20Vdtxbg4r1DBXClPXKWMHhxB7aQ759UclR-JOP6G-irMxSi970NJTqSBU-V9KqkMpLyKVvR-dbqi5r4kbd_1p-t95NRyNFsVJ8RdfyPhjymkyflpbwWSYMGKsegzh8xfwMmX0yugWa7Kl_LABpCsaem0sscMw_-lJRVU_eDybdF-6HIF31SDhIr201JFxaIgr0QxBIIH-iOb1phTFk1u8C3haoIS60iOV6QxRUqF8TLboUxKdlY538gVgU6hfZ0dn78u93a4SQR06GHVXnMiXjTwApCjKxNSvRb50eDz6Q_qsCunLY1cH7HguB04u0J5cKzBVE7_QmyAKvPPcRw1Q8j_XvpweldXlT_JW9KirWtRa2AxoYA7xgKWfWxgtEkD3xDzfbPOiRVcsVCQtJM6Tai3AnVxC7tLL12nKjti7whWHkp63j9OTXZ41SjTgAgkhmJM7zRU2GOybwxsB5lBBAqkZt_naiQaYAIaoSDBLaF6YcWCBgRPWvMDfQwI4k9BBFewnVx4MYAijSfCiia1_JZQJET9zVYkiQeKzyDyE6vTCzVWxCfoFfqeaErORTuyDAwQqzZW4F_fvatpVeuYOG_LoeZVRVHqfunQoejcRat7GBDOXyAR_OoQ7oJZyM16P71aj-Yh4ORRiIQscNQbUYO1&c=taq4h6LX5bWStGlr2wqWQDSumBsR8B6vyqNTSHm0mEdg_Jub9W8EhQ==&ch=E3jYIHQNbM23JLOmQvxq7btJUyA5XWA4XCXseJrY2By3lW0TTfRRBQ==
https://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001Pb56SP-DIHr5j9hKhZk5Fy7NxwoDPmJq_FlANrPXXtPSn_VOzph-MI0PSFhWjvEsOYLpSWpoTHc3Act0-VBuJTzecuQZT9cjW6dRLmqipkgy9pv5UIhOrGE2Ns9J5f3QYXJS6DmWWc3QnhgSoTeLeSLC9P9BR48dggVCtZ9b_xiVtm15ck5XPdIWsehEY6oV2I-S10_H-q4rP5Bw11tACkPbSL1Hc4Mw0dTN5aEK2M6Roj4GuIgvCavOikm3ERKJvV1haZkknYBlq0FIm35YSh1g9g6orxUaYmVK3eH-KHriNKz1S0gBp4Ep-9YQ9RmMusQfGGiVvq21Q6uuVKRkbTqxidZujWz1MVYpGw3TSXf9cpNsEedB6Ar-Vn5XoS_fUPZ59jtyOzT4LEkJXjpjm50jROP0ZXBczDMHgcATLUUCO3kMCKnEdRUNqnPBXwIdFQPVZa6H_isYS8qutInFY7tJdccCZOvIzWuvDHS7XJ8dtZwEH7lObMmMPfDIo5bSm3x1moiakZvsTKqnI3hkLxYja-vxA9vCcy_Dlt1Lwfc642EivQAUHHYgQpwqWIgpkkFVrgjSXnedgMaJBx60CDdoTjYYzvJzMqpQwQW3E53UfTQ6KDGgwVNOBjoCOVi2qGoIhUU9aFmc93TTbZBxRKbyeOaO0t5cWKr_gXc3AU4pPWg7_gnR-4uBLtFQgmveqBaiYRJC_Pe-WDJ9Ztzcz9XHmL9oJZ6QDekERdPxyGYKGMx7iblJWYjlwrPXioKGoFBKMXkpf-EFxiaorIoqSqN5XX4MSh6qYM-OD-PRYsU7JBhtbILZCuushAfB_7Hin7jyCSV9YECZy3Ix8sXZnrLjFm-2xx8ARpBAWX4SQdJugxydwjmG-ds0Ff2VlxeC1VlWdeLVvlrsU-O45IE8X-kSHW0aNzwFFbAfH2bJGm0VnfeiQVEekPhgXVZv_AIJzDAL3QeU3nr6J3mgLW8g58L8QWZA1eqJiWMwhwdYQXq8mn61OCvs6Mk9fqfH8TKBBx6NjKRKKovWh5zFXv_VgKquQ5Bu7jrLt2aKr2MoBWhUA5ubn7s1_Mh6hvYUUMhdU2Bvrad43Im7Q_meko1JqqE0T-9pdtPqbD4Kaw4knqWuDa3WCxBFN7FEwi_TR00dAmPX1J3E4FNDwY15kedIRrrkFhXAGUnvKj3nJy3ApCbQsn7ZJp4n6C1oVwMHtyzqnWh2Vpt1y6Q9q44ArV7cPnx4ZkISZSeWjTqLVLDaqRM=&c=taq4h6LX5bWStGlr2wqWQDSumBsR8B6vyqNTSHm0mEdg_Jub9W8EhQ==&ch=E3jYIHQNbM23JLOmQvxq7btJUyA5XWA4XCXseJrY2By3lW0TTfRRBQ==
https://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001Pb56SP-DIHr5j9hKhZk5Fy7NxwoDPmJq_FlANrPXXtPSn_VOzph-MDOnTwjIUBFBZ3d1bvOmRIVO-1c852_vGledlF63Rb4P4a_SPQEPv9p_BjjtOzAwlnVKsGE8VKSSCOUUUzkOjxvxkcgcfqaE6PGEDs7etQu4ZP5MQparMAX-FbPiKl3AdDzhRPzpAnFS&c=taq4h6LX5bWStGlr2wqWQDSumBsR8B6vyqNTSHm0mEdg_Jub9W8EhQ==&ch=E3jYIHQNbM23JLOmQvxq7btJUyA5XWA4XCXseJrY2By3lW0TTfRRBQ==
https://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001Pb56SP-DIHr5j9hKhZk5Fy7NxwoDPmJq_FlANrPXXtPSn_VOzph-MDOnTwjIUBFBZ3d1bvOmRIVO-1c852_vGledlF63Rb4P4a_SPQEPv9p_BjjtOzAwlnVKsGE8VKSSCOUUUzkOjxvxkcgcfqaE6PGEDs7etQu4ZP5MQparMAX-FbPiKl3AdDzhRPzpAnFS&c=taq4h6LX5bWStGlr2wqWQDSumBsR8B6vyqNTSHm0mEdg_Jub9W8EhQ==&ch=E3jYIHQNbM23JLOmQvxq7btJUyA5XWA4XCXseJrY2By3lW0TTfRRBQ==
https://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001Pb56SP-DIHr5j9hKhZk5Fy7NxwoDPmJq_FlANrPXXtPSn_VOzph-MO7Hh9flU3xgcyD3hmny5edYcqwhmApS12Xh3qS9NE85WrtJgY7dSvweIbAkbeYf3_d7YQtVjPmMe7jPujdJgm2D_P4Jgrde0eXd6hbC8pxBDNg94cJ7J6FWJjLX0Vlpq95cIg7DrFaIFMljy3tex8doZm2IRoBx-bLFrrZPfwUaZMXE3w_0suGOikKZnhrak8WLQLpiWazqnQsgxsh7c7M=&c=taq4h6LX5bWStGlr2wqWQDSumBsR8B6vyqNTSHm0mEdg_Jub9W8EhQ==&ch=E3jYIHQNbM23JLOmQvxq7btJUyA5XWA4XCXseJrY2By3lW0TTfRRBQ==
https://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001Pb56SP-DIHr5j9hKhZk5Fy7NxwoDPmJq_FlANrPXXtPSn_VOzph-MI0PSFhWjvEsj-6zfdmoY81P7UCZWANa6O4aGPHMk4eP6ZolWOxhqZYR9SVNtsx7DsM0kGtVoZ5vU6TWWslF4cgYsrJKY8hLus44Y9mtGgglQ2ZgOYndYyAtMlPXTD34kzAsNPYXPk0xIF3DO5Xj_C-DDMtUkI0YDRysJUSlZGwfSSBZjXR5p4yceDyhcdEfkauGuQp3Vn15OaQnrTf68Qnjn0SWktzGXfIbC_qgZ7kiqJtYF6BrMfzVZlxPgZq2M7NOelL2ul9Kd6D1DAV4wpmzu1a3bdzYmUAVEzLZN32pXtP8fWN2xc1CS442DMIBbjnGMVEHMetk&c=taq4h6LX5bWStGlr2wqWQDSumBsR8B6vyqNTSHm0mEdg_Jub9W8EhQ==&ch=E3jYIHQNbM23JLOmQvxq7btJUyA5XWA4XCXseJrY2By3lW0TTfRRBQ==
https://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001Pb56SP-DIHr5j9hKhZk5Fy7NxwoDPmJq_FlANrPXXtPSn_VOzph-MI0PSFhWjvEsj-6zfdmoY81P7UCZWANa6O4aGPHMk4eP6ZolWOxhqZYR9SVNtsx7DsM0kGtVoZ5vU6TWWslF4cgYsrJKY8hLus44Y9mtGgglQ2ZgOYndYyAtMlPXTD34kzAsNPYXPk0xIF3DO5Xj_C-DDMtUkI0YDRysJUSlZGwfSSBZjXR5p4yceDyhcdEfkauGuQp3Vn15OaQnrTf68Qnjn0SWktzGXfIbC_qgZ7kiqJtYF6BrMfzVZlxPgZq2M7NOelL2ul9Kd6D1DAV4wpmzu1a3bdzYmUAVEzLZN32pXtP8fWN2xc1CS442DMIBbjnGMVEHMetk&c=taq4h6LX5bWStGlr2wqWQDSumBsR8B6vyqNTSHm0mEdg_Jub9W8EhQ==&ch=E3jYIHQNbM23JLOmQvxq7btJUyA5XWA4XCXseJrY2By3lW0TTfRRBQ==
https://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001Pb56SP-DIHr5j9hKhZk5Fy7NxwoDPmJq_FlANrPXXtPSn_VOzph-MI0PSFhWjvEsiINMpbcwpz2T2grIE2MJH-bdmDM60VRhH3AE1KZ-6yAMdtfRhsRHxtIZJSpFxJ2POt03PwR3G0Vx_ASJJGet8vKK8AF4LAutadsuse_QvtZEMXDpaZhmRKNG3S9sHXdL44PAk221INivtvxwJoxazm6g_eG9vddscPtCLVgzsupkjEvx5SfptQft2hSmfG1kKQKj3zY6XFEPAtB50CUHr122GLbsTdBH4Q4-_6XapguH01ghOVNI_49M15nRwrvsYZMWGcFyG1x62Ii9wep-ITEfIzPPepLj18oi_RdX_rKLLJUcBGPMRFfLpjUzkvEy&c=taq4h6LX5bWStGlr2wqWQDSumBsR8B6vyqNTSHm0mEdg_Jub9W8EhQ==&ch=E3jYIHQNbM23JLOmQvxq7btJUyA5XWA4XCXseJrY2By3lW0TTfRRBQ==
https://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001Pb56SP-DIHr5j9hKhZk5Fy7NxwoDPmJq_FlANrPXXtPSn_VOzph-MAYz8HAFB13OMMuQr15WsgoQIhKzEV0iwYahEDlgKLZ3Rd2nsHLsHCMvRya7E6dFRatlFcds3dyLDxzaZ76bQq85eSfFLvkypjVbVYftvxxkuYQ_jZtiG2utWOmZrFA07XNY5-B-95d9&c=taq4h6LX5bWStGlr2wqWQDSumBsR8B6vyqNTSHm0mEdg_Jub9W8EhQ==&ch=E3jYIHQNbM23JLOmQvxq7btJUyA5XWA4XCXseJrY2By3lW0TTfRRBQ==
https://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001Pb56SP-DIHr5j9hKhZk5Fy7NxwoDPmJq_FlANrPXXtPSn_VOzph-MAYz8HAFB13OMMuQr15WsgoQIhKzEV0iwYahEDlgKLZ3Rd2nsHLsHCMvRya7E6dFRatlFcds3dyLDxzaZ76bQq85eSfFLvkypjVbVYftvxxkuYQ_jZtiG2utWOmZrFA07XNY5-B-95d9&c=taq4h6LX5bWStGlr2wqWQDSumBsR8B6vyqNTSHm0mEdg_Jub9W8EhQ==&ch=E3jYIHQNbM23JLOmQvxq7btJUyA5XWA4XCXseJrY2By3lW0TTfRRBQ==
https://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001Pb56SP-DIHr5j9hKhZk5Fy7NxwoDPmJq_FlANrPXXtPSn_VOzph-MCPqeQ8x2epLzRiFlqRj5am4QjZ6gOfG6OBM2RNx2npfs5MCnsYGevYDQT-uw2iwSGFhvi0rZVi8hRGYnI-KOmg48f4CBVIEq4TMgGwGooOaiwQ0CKHyfnMQ9SfaQmAXXN51M9VfOFev&c=taq4h6LX5bWStGlr2wqWQDSumBsR8B6vyqNTSHm0mEdg_Jub9W8EhQ==&ch=E3jYIHQNbM23JLOmQvxq7btJUyA5XWA4XCXseJrY2By3lW0TTfRRBQ==
https://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001Pb56SP-DIHr5j9hKhZk5Fy7NxwoDPmJq_FlANrPXXtPSn_VOzph-MJGAIo3_e2bGHCuOh73BBOJd2I2OD2cOU19EbTS4TUaNa3MjuxTBybK_B4tglslaohq5zlPXtHr6tsRMzSUFeygM3PGIsiQOJZ2OqUIebm3UjFpvaue88JFnuuy17KW3zA==&c=taq4h6LX5bWStGlr2wqWQDSumBsR8B6vyqNTSHm0mEdg_Jub9W8EhQ==&ch=E3jYIHQNbM23JLOmQvxq7btJUyA5XWA4XCXseJrY2By3lW0TTfRRBQ==
https://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001Pb56SP-DIHr5j9hKhZk5Fy7NxwoDPmJq_FlANrPXXtPSn_VOzph-MCPqeQ8x2epLTQtNNbIfSyCWF5bj9EIiXO9swGb0epFYnWBmyRY3adPU-jpSMIZehdL_n1UKKGsfnpnwttz61riSJ6L4l8i5ihUDV2glJV4dOVQbyGCzaZZ4q6uCUrB-2A==&c=taq4h6LX5bWStGlr2wqWQDSumBsR8B6vyqNTSHm0mEdg_Jub9W8EhQ==&ch=E3jYIHQNbM23JLOmQvxq7btJUyA5XWA4XCXseJrY2By3lW0TTfRRBQ==
https://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001Pb56SP-DIHr5j9hKhZk5Fy7NxwoDPmJq_FlANrPXXtPSn_VOzph-MCPqeQ8x2epLcpkLMi_KRXIhXhm7TLIW5HT2SYPiRSHrwrT1jt8x0Bie5SritUU0Q99mCrMyuPkTahvcdFscMmmmw-_6WdLMW9L1PXusLQLHYUQ8fw1Sbtkzd4kxMKlXKQ==&c=taq4h6LX5bWStGlr2wqWQDSumBsR8B6vyqNTSHm0mEdg_Jub9W8EhQ==&ch=E3jYIHQNbM23JLOmQvxq7btJUyA5XWA4XCXseJrY2By3lW0TTfRRBQ==
https://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001Pb56SP-DIHr5j9hKhZk5Fy7NxwoDPmJq_FlANrPXXtPSn_VOzph-MIvNv-F2wu82tK09tAzHVTHAMUjUtqcHexUYPVSE4WFbgL4_lYnfFkZoqhjP4ktqIrkkZxtX5xQsjGwV92qrxBTRbMgyrmJg3jjli7zHZ0Fvf36n0UOQY98=&c=taq4h6LX5bWStGlr2wqWQDSumBsR8B6vyqNTSHm0mEdg_Jub9W8EhQ==&ch=E3jYIHQNbM23JLOmQvxq7btJUyA5XWA4XCXseJrY2By3lW0TTfRRBQ==
https://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001Pb56SP-DIHr5j9hKhZk5Fy7NxwoDPmJq_FlANrPXXtPSn_VOzph-MJjfBWv6XbVWhgEGVud7OGQy-MsdbvfNTSAtXCu8emcOz_h8T7GPbrFnXtqkaggyJVTSjfpC7GrscZCt8fN_XdFqa_2hqTVE1rmiVkLQu3vC&c=taq4h6LX5bWStGlr2wqWQDSumBsR8B6vyqNTSHm0mEdg_Jub9W8EhQ==&ch=E3jYIHQNbM23JLOmQvxq7btJUyA5XWA4XCXseJrY2By3lW0TTfRRBQ==
https://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001Pb56SP-DIHr5j9hKhZk5Fy7NxwoDPmJq_FlANrPXXtPSn_VOzph-MJz7vn3_5zFzJ2oX_oPFjRImXCKlmE2uB57h3obrw3Q0XeYBdcqcjG0bWoS2-Ls7NXI42jpS-VrK_thmW5m6-zb8-GPiterfcQ4H8UbApjtNbisxB0pbqZ0=&c=taq4h6LX5bWStGlr2wqWQDSumBsR8B6vyqNTSHm0mEdg_Jub9W8EhQ==&ch=E3jYIHQNbM23JLOmQvxq7btJUyA5XWA4XCXseJrY2By3lW0TTfRRBQ==
https://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001Pb56SP-DIHr5j9hKhZk5Fy7NxwoDPmJq_FlANrPXXtPSn_VOzph-MDOnTwjIUBFBxMNq3ofgaeTfz5bA0F1-OH8Kj1cFSBC9V0d7k597JZ8s-4vAxFnEguZHhbozVTrtUqSsQc24Xh6dm5QHGI0Y1JV5oVYwL5NurCV4CL7bDu2GFZIXLCJ5vg==&c=taq4h6LX5bWStGlr2wqWQDSumBsR8B6vyqNTSHm0mEdg_Jub9W8EhQ==&ch=E3jYIHQNbM23JLOmQvxq7btJUyA5XWA4XCXseJrY2By3lW0TTfRRBQ==
https://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001Pb56SP-DIHr5j9hKhZk5Fy7NxwoDPmJq_FlANrPXXtPSn_VOzph-MDOnTwjIUBFBxMNq3ofgaeTfz5bA0F1-OH8Kj1cFSBC9V0d7k597JZ8s-4vAxFnEguZHhbozVTrtUqSsQc24Xh6dm5QHGI0Y1JV5oVYwL5NurCV4CL7bDu2GFZIXLCJ5vg==&c=taq4h6LX5bWStGlr2wqWQDSumBsR8B6vyqNTSHm0mEdg_Jub9W8EhQ==&ch=E3jYIHQNbM23JLOmQvxq7btJUyA5XWA4XCXseJrY2By3lW0TTfRRBQ==
https://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001Pb56SP-DIHr5j9hKhZk5Fy7NxwoDPmJq_FlANrPXXtPSn_VOzph-MCPqeQ8x2epLR90TjQjyr96JoTG4TPRg3VNDsB8I7kjEV5IdneW6Egwlia5Nw1HU2iXevyuV3iBJm-k6NYGOnTPv4wStjh-yyWe5RjPXdRrwGsj9664ZibeYISYbJ0jWnD8XGtqmMjhx6C2AeptAv-I=&c=taq4h6LX5bWStGlr2wqWQDSumBsR8B6vyqNTSHm0mEdg_Jub9W8EhQ==&ch=E3jYIHQNbM23JLOmQvxq7btJUyA5XWA4XCXseJrY2By3lW0TTfRRBQ==
https://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001Pb56SP-DIHr5j9hKhZk5Fy7NxwoDPmJq_FlANrPXXtPSn_VOzph-MCPqeQ8x2epLdZtqOAYd3io_FJfAEY0YVWPeIBc3e5Mb6m75Ovgl_qP1drQDjH4Y9u6tEnBZ1apCkluu3zQ_D5BjsLYClJH6B6MA2K_5WGVHzKsvbUPTuqToXwtc_PL68lHOtfAhdz_wx9-JxH2RoYo=&c=taq4h6LX5bWStGlr2wqWQDSumBsR8B6vyqNTSHm0mEdg_Jub9W8EhQ==&ch=E3jYIHQNbM23JLOmQvxq7btJUyA5XWA4XCXseJrY2By3lW0TTfRRBQ==
https://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001Pb56SP-DIHr5j9hKhZk5Fy7NxwoDPmJq_FlANrPXXtPSn_VOzph-MCc1hbyLaDZO6G6MatLRLFU-MasdQWZyZEhyTwq-le94kioEXejrb4Cqp5kf7cXD2Vm_Xw9FkIpBxFZPg35MjEI=&c=taq4h6LX5bWStGlr2wqWQDSumBsR8B6vyqNTSHm0mEdg_Jub9W8EhQ==&ch=E3jYIHQNbM23JLOmQvxq7btJUyA5XWA4XCXseJrY2By3lW0TTfRRBQ==
https://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001Pb56SP-DIHr5j9hKhZk5Fy7NxwoDPmJq_FlANrPXXtPSn_VOzph-MCc1hbyLaDZO6G6MatLRLFU-MasdQWZyZEhyTwq-le94kioEXejrb4Cqp5kf7cXD2Vm_Xw9FkIpBxFZPg35MjEI=&c=taq4h6LX5bWStGlr2wqWQDSumBsR8B6vyqNTSHm0mEdg_Jub9W8EhQ==&ch=E3jYIHQNbM23JLOmQvxq7btJUyA5XWA4XCXseJrY2By3lW0TTfRRBQ==
https://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001Pb56SP-DIHr5j9hKhZk5Fy7NxwoDPmJq_FlANrPXXtPSn_VOzph-MF3o4QPSvp1duJNP0iY6abRd_Wb3R73dbjHpk1AfkVc2Z3CCU_5y43mqWGUmAJnh6jcizSS1QwTSVsIKurDKQlErJw2ch7fGow==&c=taq4h6LX5bWStGlr2wqWQDSumBsR8B6vyqNTSHm0mEdg_Jub9W8EhQ==&ch=E3jYIHQNbM23JLOmQvxq7btJUyA5XWA4XCXseJrY2By3lW0TTfRRBQ==
https://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001Pb56SP-DIHr5j9hKhZk5Fy7NxwoDPmJq_FlANrPXXtPSn_VOzph-MF3o4QPSvp1duJNP0iY6abRd_Wb3R73dbjHpk1AfkVc2Z3CCU_5y43mqWGUmAJnh6jcizSS1QwTSVsIKurDKQlErJw2ch7fGow==&c=taq4h6LX5bWStGlr2wqWQDSumBsR8B6vyqNTSHm0mEdg_Jub9W8EhQ==&ch=E3jYIHQNbM23JLOmQvxq7btJUyA5XWA4XCXseJrY2By3lW0TTfRRBQ==
https://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001Pb56SP-DIHr5j9hKhZk5Fy7NxwoDPmJq_FlANrPXXtPSn_VOzph-MNcEt3QsbRwAB5MYGZyZ7oLoXCBWBViFr-r3wTZk7rU4u0DYUuY6uz887WjnEX5ZHqKF6q_a4M2rLX_o8CKr6m_Pih1qIIYZlQ==&c=taq4h6LX5bWStGlr2wqWQDSumBsR8B6vyqNTSHm0mEdg_Jub9W8EhQ==&ch=E3jYIHQNbM23JLOmQvxq7btJUyA5XWA4XCXseJrY2By3lW0TTfRRBQ==
https://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001Pb56SP-DIHr5j9hKhZk5Fy7NxwoDPmJq_FlANrPXXtPSn_VOzph-MNcEt3QsbRwAB5MYGZyZ7oLoXCBWBViFr-r3wTZk7rU4u0DYUuY6uz887WjnEX5ZHqKF6q_a4M2rLX_o8CKr6m_Pih1qIIYZlQ==&c=taq4h6LX5bWStGlr2wqWQDSumBsR8B6vyqNTSHm0mEdg_Jub9W8EhQ==&ch=E3jYIHQNbM23JLOmQvxq7btJUyA5XWA4XCXseJrY2By3lW0TTfRRBQ==
https://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001Pb56SP-DIHr5j9hKhZk5Fy7NxwoDPmJq_FlANrPXXtPSn_VOzph-MAngjtK6mrOK-C6FxtZXhUNa3OPBenHDquWlSi_flHb3UBKMOwaWalkBLrZ6eorF4hZvXoL-7wyBjBACWw4i-zNqXFOFk1iNe-pvcqHCqjvo&c=taq4h6LX5bWStGlr2wqWQDSumBsR8B6vyqNTSHm0mEdg_Jub9W8EhQ==&ch=E3jYIHQNbM23JLOmQvxq7btJUyA5XWA4XCXseJrY2By3lW0TTfRRBQ==
https://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001Pb56SP-DIHr5j9hKhZk5Fy7NxwoDPmJq_FlANrPXXtPSn_VOzph-MAngjtK6mrOK-C6FxtZXhUNa3OPBenHDquWlSi_flHb3UBKMOwaWalkBLrZ6eorF4hZvXoL-7wyBjBACWw4i-zNqXFOFk1iNe-pvcqHCqjvo&c=taq4h6LX5bWStGlr2wqWQDSumBsR8B6vyqNTSHm0mEdg_Jub9W8EhQ==&ch=E3jYIHQNbM23JLOmQvxq7btJUyA5XWA4XCXseJrY2By3lW0TTfRRBQ==
https://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001Pb56SP-DIHr5j9hKhZk5Fy7NxwoDPmJq_FlANrPXXtPSn_VOzph-MHgshL8VJGgUDFKNyGDAqX_jO-6XbCHYVE46fW_qZoQ5sAtl976HR2FndFLnNTr2r-B1bNikNGY4zDr_yk0LtWYAcGgVEYKlhMDUHvEGmkjk&c=taq4h6LX5bWStGlr2wqWQDSumBsR8B6vyqNTSHm0mEdg_Jub9W8EhQ==&ch=E3jYIHQNbM23JLOmQvxq7btJUyA5XWA4XCXseJrY2By3lW0TTfRRBQ==
https://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001Pb56SP-DIHr5j9hKhZk5Fy7NxwoDPmJq_FlANrPXXtPSn_VOzph-MDWlpCWYQAw2eQD5IiB2L4CPJCy0JKR31OlLHEzl-BZHQTVHtRaD7lRL5p9CxqekbifthFCkKZtSTfUDAnRBpb9xnn00uQCGPw==&c=taq4h6LX5bWStGlr2wqWQDSumBsR8B6vyqNTSHm0mEdg_Jub9W8EhQ==&ch=E3jYIHQNbM23JLOmQvxq7btJUyA5XWA4XCXseJrY2By3lW0TTfRRBQ==
https://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001Pb56SP-DIHr5j9hKhZk5Fy7NxwoDPmJq_FlANrPXXtPSn_VOzph-MDWlpCWYQAw2eQD5IiB2L4CPJCy0JKR31OlLHEzl-BZHQTVHtRaD7lRL5p9CxqekbifthFCkKZtSTfUDAnRBpb9xnn00uQCGPw==&c=taq4h6LX5bWStGlr2wqWQDSumBsR8B6vyqNTSHm0mEdg_Jub9W8EhQ==&ch=E3jYIHQNbM23JLOmQvxq7btJUyA5XWA4XCXseJrY2By3lW0TTfRRBQ==
https://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001Pb56SP-DIHr5j9hKhZk5Fy7NxwoDPmJq_FlANrPXXtPSn_VOzph-MPFITdE3129cu3xJKYS_ZQzzsKTAOADgjNmJDoXDOn81F8A_-JtDtgP4nEm5mQCNFeRpVubf_i0GM8hL8c5GmEnIFnTdiswwJw==&c=taq4h6LX5bWStGlr2wqWQDSumBsR8B6vyqNTSHm0mEdg_Jub9W8EhQ==&ch=E3jYIHQNbM23JLOmQvxq7btJUyA5XWA4XCXseJrY2By3lW0TTfRRBQ==
https://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001Pb56SP-DIHr5j9hKhZk5Fy7NxwoDPmJq_FlANrPXXtPSn_VOzph-MPFITdE3129cu3xJKYS_ZQzzsKTAOADgjNmJDoXDOn81F8A_-JtDtgP4nEm5mQCNFeRpVubf_i0GM8hL8c5GmEnIFnTdiswwJw==&c=taq4h6LX5bWStGlr2wqWQDSumBsR8B6vyqNTSHm0mEdg_Jub9W8EhQ==&ch=E3jYIHQNbM23JLOmQvxq7btJUyA5XWA4XCXseJrY2By3lW0TTfRRBQ==
https://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001Pb56SP-DIHr5j9hKhZk5Fy7NxwoDPmJq_FlANrPXXtPSn_VOzph-MM6Wz4I8Svlx4Zf_h5fHpruzV1V2OihbFXl8gXPXbZFVwZrFQCf0CPD9bHUs2M8fAASp2p7asMRnqK0tdj5dV0jlHLli_b_Tsg==&c=taq4h6LX5bWStGlr2wqWQDSumBsR8B6vyqNTSHm0mEdg_Jub9W8EhQ==&ch=E3jYIHQNbM23JLOmQvxq7btJUyA5XWA4XCXseJrY2By3lW0TTfRRBQ==
https://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001Pb56SP-DIHr5j9hKhZk5Fy7NxwoDPmJq_FlANrPXXtPSn_VOzph-MMRZwwzHTJ1_zRB5alTzekhqKEwdTbwuQB51EB15dxmbmqmH2ek-Z1mEeMhsbghO57wNF7cuZPuWdBU0gNsL7C99qhtjvELJ9Q==&c=taq4h6LX5bWStGlr2wqWQDSumBsR8B6vyqNTSHm0mEdg_Jub9W8EhQ==&ch=E3jYIHQNbM23JLOmQvxq7btJUyA5XWA4XCXseJrY2By3lW0TTfRRBQ==
https://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001Pb56SP-DIHr5j9hKhZk5Fy7NxwoDPmJq_FlANrPXXtPSn_VOzph-MPVAje-h-awcNDCGN8SADFXqtLqihNiUwUAhieE_kzeIAY2yN8Kt4i5mEgfeMS6cqHO7AvuRIe-F5xyNy_hG8wk=&c=taq4h6LX5bWStGlr2wqWQDSumBsR8B6vyqNTSHm0mEdg_Jub9W8EhQ==&ch=E3jYIHQNbM23JLOmQvxq7btJUyA5XWA4XCXseJrY2By3lW0TTfRRBQ==
https://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001Pb56SP-DIHr5j9hKhZk5Fy7NxwoDPmJq_FlANrPXXtPSn_VOzph-MPVAje-h-awcNDCGN8SADFXqtLqihNiUwUAhieE_kzeIAY2yN8Kt4i5mEgfeMS6cqHO7AvuRIe-F5xyNy_hG8wk=&c=taq4h6LX5bWStGlr2wqWQDSumBsR8B6vyqNTSHm0mEdg_Jub9W8EhQ==&ch=E3jYIHQNbM23JLOmQvxq7btJUyA5XWA4XCXseJrY2By3lW0TTfRRBQ==
https://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001Pb56SP-DIHr5j9hKhZk5Fy7NxwoDPmJq_FlANrPXXtPSn_VOzph-MI0PSFhWjvEsiINMpbcwpz2T2grIE2MJH-bdmDM60VRhH3AE1KZ-6yAMdtfRhsRHxtIZJSpFxJ2POt03PwR3G0Vx_ASJJGet8vKK8AF4LAutadsuse_QvtZEMXDpaZhmRKNG3S9sHXdL44PAk221INivtvxwJoxazm6g_eG9vddscPtCLVgzsupkjEvx5SfptQft2hSmfG1kKQKj3zY6XFEPAtB50CUHr122GLbsTdBH4Q4-_6XapguH01ghOVNI_49M15nRwrvsYZMWGcFyG1x62Ii9wep-ITEfIzPPepLj18oi_RdX_rKLLJUcBGPMRFfLpjUzkvEy&c=taq4h6LX5bWStGlr2wqWQDSumBsR8B6vyqNTSHm0mEdg_Jub9W8EhQ==&ch=E3jYIHQNbM23JLOmQvxq7btJUyA5XWA4XCXseJrY2By3lW0TTfRRBQ==


Shared clerk compensation resolution does not comply with township legal requirements

From: Michigan Townships Association (jenn@michigantownships.org)

To: bridgewatertwpsupervisor@yahoo.com

Date: Thursday, December 14, 2023 at 10:30 AM EST

 

We are aware that the Michigan Association of Municipal Clerks (MAMC) has sent out a
statement and sample resolution that they are proposing be used by municipalities to
address compensation for the new and expanded election responsibilities resulting from
Proposal 2 of 2022 and follow-up legislation adopted for its implementation.
 
While we share the concerns for adequate compensation for all election officials (including
clerks and other officials responsible for the election process), we cannot advocate for the
use of a resolution that does not match the legal requirements and restrictions on the
compensation of township clerks. 
 
MTA supports townships paying township clerks an appropriate salary of the office for their
very important duties, especially election functions. And we recognize that the greatly
expanded election functions due to extensive amendments to the law in a short period of
time, as well as increasing numbers of elections being scheduled, even in what would
normally have been considered previously to be “off years,” means that all townships
should review their lawful options for appropriate clerk’s compensation.
 
But there are major differences between the laws that govern counties, cities, villages and
townships—particularly regarding what a township board member can be paid and how
that is set, as compared to the other units where, for example, a city or village clerk might
not be elected/appointed, but is actually an employee. However, the MAMC sample
resolution we have seen does not make any distinction and includes language that
conflicts with state laws regarding the salaries of the township board offices. It is our
opinion that this would not be a lawful resolution or approach for a township to use
regarding a township clerk’s salary of the office. This opinion, however, is not legal advice
and you should consult your own township attorney for guidance.
 
In a township, the salary of the office of clerk, as stated in the salary resolution for the
office of clerk, is the ONLY compensation that a township clerk can receive for performing
the statutory duties of the office of clerk. And any and all election administration duties of
the office of clerk are statutory duties of the office of township clerk. (If a clerk is appointed
by the election commission to also serve as an election inspector for an election, then they
would be an “election inspector” for those hours they serve on Election Day, and they
would be paid what the township pays its election inspectors—BUT they cannot receive
any other additional pay for their clerk’s statutory election duties.)
 



So, regardless of how many elections or early voting/registration days a township clerk
might have in a given year, the salary of the office stated in the salary resolution is the
most that can be paid to a township clerk for holding the office of clerk and performing the
statutory duties of the office. 
 
For this reason, MTA encourages townships to consider increasing the salary of the office
of clerk, if at all possible.
 
There are three possible ways that the salary resolutions of the township board offices
(supervisor, clerk, treasurer, and trustee if the trustees in a township are paid a salary)
would be set in an individual township: 1) By the township board at any time, 2) By the
annual meeting of the electors before a new fiscal year (if the annual meeting is still held
—uncommon) or 3) By a salary compensation commission created by township board
ordinance that meets every two years (rare).
 
Additional information is available in MTA’s “Understanding Compensation for Township
Officials and Employees” information packet; a presentation on setting board salaries; and
two sample MTA Township Board Salary Resolutions (township board sets the salaries OR
annual meeting). Note that the samples include all four board offices, but only to keep the
sample to one page—each office would have a separate salary resolution.
 
MTA-member township officials may contact the MTA Member Information Services staff
at (517) 321-6467 (press 1) for more information on the process.

 
 
 

    
 

Michigan Townships Association | 512 Westshire Drive, Lansing, MI 48917
www.michigantownships.org

Unsubscribe bridgewatertwpsupervisor@yahoo.com

Update Profile | Constant Contact Data Notice

Sent by jenn@michigantownships.org powered by

Try email marketing for free today!

https://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001n8_szFeXVPPkWfALafW0JflmceGSOoWJqZpS0WdaMdqa7OEOx-pZGmKa3rkJHHpUFok5gJ2XS9Ssbi285hARiaj-m1RJYUa7MfUnMS8Xv7ra4I3nqMtWVJ4K_ptDrPnTMMt1TtkrZ1czbkJ_3IhFK8tlLoCz9qbLpwJKGRCvP6imnCczSfERLsONVTMa96qntBKtf66OlzpFczz69vDPBg0Dx3Z1u8S4-JokhNW6MJ8=&c=50LbLb-P_xzZ8qMqlhWFDQG5eZ9zrBnyl48J2OeZz75TYUxFHJjcaw==&ch=StZJARcZJymyha_QINHrAdSIX-0-H5o0x3AfUCrXvpR3aKNQH1dVIg==
https://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001n8_szFeXVPPkWfALafW0JflmceGSOoWJqZpS0WdaMdqa7OEOx-pZGmKa3rkJHHpUFok5gJ2XS9Ssbi285hARiaj-m1RJYUa7MfUnMS8Xv7ra4I3nqMtWVJ4K_ptDrPnTMMt1TtkrZ1czbkJ_3IhFK8tlLoCz9qbLpwJKGRCvP6imnCczSfERLsONVTMa96qntBKtf66OlzpFczz69vDPBg0Dx3Z1u8S4-JokhNW6MJ8=&c=50LbLb-P_xzZ8qMqlhWFDQG5eZ9zrBnyl48J2OeZz75TYUxFHJjcaw==&ch=StZJARcZJymyha_QINHrAdSIX-0-H5o0x3AfUCrXvpR3aKNQH1dVIg==
https://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001n8_szFeXVPPkWfALafW0JflmceGSOoWJqZpS0WdaMdqa7OEOx-pZGmKa3rkJHHpUiOlT97IbjEgdNWRdZMHqbV8em97MPMXPw2SiJgkG7t_Fty3L7wBJfHS7XQucVBNv3iD0CUE_6KHUtOCwI-NOU9dF_XiCqgUczYLbhdEzY1D8Dd37dyqedqswpSw80QeL2I6hVywY4x7cKtmtNUJI2UbdhOintYDaEmnFdejjsrYkPWWZvqD9sQ==&c=50LbLb-P_xzZ8qMqlhWFDQG5eZ9zrBnyl48J2OeZz75TYUxFHJjcaw==&ch=StZJARcZJymyha_QINHrAdSIX-0-H5o0x3AfUCrXvpR3aKNQH1dVIg==
https://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001n8_szFeXVPPkWfALafW0JflmceGSOoWJqZpS0WdaMdqa7OEOx-pZGmKa3rkJHHpUZulaP8TMrsEpxCd-tZFOviZav9uV-wezmjZCZlN1YNcd4QpzYP1z0p_kd_4UqnO8iBzs_HDnErQRAkDUJrXMa1XaFS2k4dfn9OF6OcJ_Y7g_PsfCeUekWXj8kP9WMW9tgWjUa2ri1C9FV1RB3kFj7km3wVbwcr5bVJpJzn00YBE0kYZQzDZoBpbijXEk12aP&c=50LbLb-P_xzZ8qMqlhWFDQG5eZ9zrBnyl48J2OeZz75TYUxFHJjcaw==&ch=StZJARcZJymyha_QINHrAdSIX-0-H5o0x3AfUCrXvpR3aKNQH1dVIg==
https://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001n8_szFeXVPPkWfALafW0JflmceGSOoWJqZpS0WdaMdqa7OEOx-pZGmKa3rkJHHpUWSXEoprWm7I3h5mzSEEHtKAO4j4eFoAN5m36vCGiw_sStQdQF6loPF82DI4__MsFhfOfSPPle6YUXmbBcPjISVZteMvRzhJ2xXbV10y0wrShPQYfuQ_k0-mhpvDnkwRaS8i-CTpT2clrVedYLW4pEhXPk04dtmc1fHBTOYCGFLtVFSWu6IOdcPGSAQNeLd8L&c=50LbLb-P_xzZ8qMqlhWFDQG5eZ9zrBnyl48J2OeZz75TYUxFHJjcaw==&ch=StZJARcZJymyha_QINHrAdSIX-0-H5o0x3AfUCrXvpR3aKNQH1dVIg==
https://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001n8_szFeXVPPkWfALafW0JflmceGSOoWJqZpS0WdaMdqa7OEOx-pZGqbjw5DK4Q3wZ_p7VOyUZcQfi3SVUXjSag-H73b8FDWcn2O6BQUASdF9O0i4muRcZZ0fQkA0w6JZ8XbT3zU4tv9UEAUSXQfjrCmsADwTeYU_&c=50LbLb-P_xzZ8qMqlhWFDQG5eZ9zrBnyl48J2OeZz75TYUxFHJjcaw==&ch=StZJARcZJymyha_QINHrAdSIX-0-H5o0x3AfUCrXvpR3aKNQH1dVIg==
https://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001n8_szFeXVPPkWfALafW0JflmceGSOoWJqZpS0WdaMdqa7OEOx-pZGqbjw5DK4Q3wZ_p7VOyUZcQfi3SVUXjSag-H73b8FDWcn2O6BQUASdF9O0i4muRcZZ0fQkA0w6JZ8XbT3zU4tv9UEAUSXQfjrCmsADwTeYU_&c=50LbLb-P_xzZ8qMqlhWFDQG5eZ9zrBnyl48J2OeZz75TYUxFHJjcaw==&ch=StZJARcZJymyha_QINHrAdSIX-0-H5o0x3AfUCrXvpR3aKNQH1dVIg==
https://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001n8_szFeXVPPkWfALafW0JflmceGSOoWJqZpS0WdaMdqa7OEOx-pZGqbjw5DK4Q3wgy4SruWd7I9tR2Cp70lsbWVeqFxOXXi3TOrIcGhmx4ShM-8jGDZEbdDjzX-CMOG2QknC4-YNH7rncKyDQ4TJoJIp3I_uxePR&c=50LbLb-P_xzZ8qMqlhWFDQG5eZ9zrBnyl48J2OeZz75TYUxFHJjcaw==&ch=StZJARcZJymyha_QINHrAdSIX-0-H5o0x3AfUCrXvpR3aKNQH1dVIg==
https://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001n8_szFeXVPPkWfALafW0JflmceGSOoWJqZpS0WdaMdqa7OEOx-pZGqbjw5DK4Q3wgy4SruWd7I9tR2Cp70lsbWVeqFxOXXi3TOrIcGhmx4ShM-8jGDZEbdDjzX-CMOG2QknC4-YNH7rncKyDQ4TJoJIp3I_uxePR&c=50LbLb-P_xzZ8qMqlhWFDQG5eZ9zrBnyl48J2OeZz75TYUxFHJjcaw==&ch=StZJARcZJymyha_QINHrAdSIX-0-H5o0x3AfUCrXvpR3aKNQH1dVIg==
https://visitor.constantcontact.com/do?p=un&m=001-B6ryu8d2EoZ9pvfe2K8aQ%3D&ch=843e4de0-d41b-11e6-8fff-d4ae5292c40b&ca=ccf23825-5d05-402e-b27d-7d8834605bc5
https://visitor.constantcontact.com/do?p=oo&m=001-B6ryu8d2EoZ9pvfe2K8aQ%3D&ch=843e4de0-d41b-11e6-8fff-d4ae5292c40b&ca=ccf23825-5d05-402e-b27d-7d8834605bc5
http://www.constantcontact.com/legal/about-constant-contact
mailto:jenn@michigantownships.org
http://www.constantcontact.com/index.jsp?cc=nge&rmc=VF21_CPE&pn=associations&nav=ccf23825-5d05-402e-b27d-7d8834605bc5
http://www.constantcontact.com/index.jsp?cc=nge&rmc=VF21_CPE&pn=associations&nav=ccf23825-5d05-402e-b27d-7d8834605bc5
http://www.constantcontact.com/index.jsp?cc=nge&rmc=VF21_CPE&pn=associations&nav=ccf23825-5d05-402e-b27d-7d8834605bc5


Updates regarding your DTE account

From: DTE Energy (dte-energy@dteenergy.com)

To: bridgewatertwpsupervisor@yahoo.com

Date: Monday, December 18, 2023 at 10:20 AM EST

December 18, 2023

Dear DTE Energy Lighting Customer,
 
As a valued customer, we are writing to update you on a recently approved rate order by
the Michigan Public Service Commission (MPSC), which will result in an electric rate
increase reflected on your bill effective December 15, 2023. It takes about 30 days for
customers to see this new rate appear in their bill and can vary based on billing cycles. 
 
DTE also recently announced a reduction in the Power Supply Recovery Rate (PSCR),
which represents the cost of fuel and other sources the company uses to produce
electricity, by about $300 million annually. This reduction went into effect December 1,
2023, offsets a portion of the overall bill and varies depending on usage. 
 
The MPSC order supports our plan to accelerate system upgrades, with the goal of
improving overall electric reliability for customers by more than 60% over the next five
years. This directly affects your community by providing a safer and more welcoming
environment for residents, visitors and potential businesses. A more reliable, cleaner
and affordable energy grid isn’t only good for your municipality and our customers, but
it’s critical for the current and future competitiveness of Michigan. We want our electric
grid to be an economic engine that attracts development and jobs to our great state and
to our local communities. 
 
The new rate means continued value-added services that come with being an outdoor
lighting customer. These services include routine inspections of underground-fed light
posts, identification of decorative street posts that require painting and replacement,
testing and replacement of underground streetlight cables, an LED cleaning program
and our municipal night patrol program.
 
We value your partnership and are available to discuss any questions you may have
regarding the new rates. For additional information or to learn about energy-saving
opportunities, please contact your assigned Account Manager.
 

Having trouble viewing images? Please click here to view as a web page.

To ensure future delivery of e-mails, please add DTE Energy (dte-energy@dteenergy.com) to your safe sender list or
address book.

https://view.exacttarget.com/?qs=d0b8c25702a5dcfc379d85169f6c69751e6ea15caa4a021f30b37ebd33bd5dfe0866cd48d73bc458b97d7f81635c853182cd98edd2bcd1c2aa1abfbacb1db87484708c46dc10e4890d8a3111e8aeb4e3


Brandon Faron
Account Manager
(734) 397-4017
brandon.faron@dteenergy.com
 
Sincerely,
 
Christopher Hartley
Manager, Sales and Business Development
DTE Community Lighting

 

This email was sent to: bridgewatertwpsupervisor@yahoo.com

This email was sent by: DTE Energy - One Energy Plaza - Detroit - MI - 48226-1279

We respect your right to privacy - view our policy | Unsubscribe

https://cl.exct.net/?qs=34d7eb87cee05f4646b857740b2c66a62d2904b60b7897135ccf0bc68a60cc336a9f8c8619e8c4f6e35ea83cb4bdbb9e
https://cl.exct.net/profile_center.aspx?qs=c06006530415ebb2114cfcbcf505fda497ea250ab839dc7a54ca69c5f0f40c0b81a08e4fd390f3f3476c8d0fa226a5d4e4d8c0a5a5a08942e25cf859f750dae3


 
BRIDGEWATER TOWNSHIP 

PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 

MONDAY DECEMBER 18, 2023 

MINUTES 

I. CALL TO ORDER - Meeting was called to order at 7:06 pm. 

II. ROLL CALL AND DETERMINATION OF QUORUM – Horney, Greenwald,  Iwanicki, Oliver present.  

Barbu absent.  Quorum obtained.  Zoning Administrator, Nanney present. 

III. REVIEW AND APPROVE AGENDA – Horney moved and Oliver seconded to approve the agenda.  

Approved by unanimous vote. 

IV. APROVAL OF MINUTES – Moved by Oliver, seconded by Horney to approve the both the October 16, 

2023 minutes and the November 20, 2023 minutes.  Approved by unanimous vote. 

V. CITIZEN PARTICIPATION – None. 

VI. PUBLIC HEARINGS – None scheduled. 

VII. OLD BUSINESS – None. 

VIII. NEW BUSINESS –  

A. Agenda items up for discussion:  Zoning Ordinance Articles 4.0, 5.1, and 5.2.  Moved by Iwanicki, 

seconded by Horney to table discussion for now.  Passed by unanimous vote. 

B. Election of officers – Moved by Oliver, seconded by Iwanicki, to re-elect Dave Horney as 

Planning Commission Chairman.  Approved by unanimous vote.  Moved by Oliver, seconded by 

Horney, to re-elect Mark Iwanicki as Vice Chairman.  Approved by unanimous vote.  Moved by 

Oliver, seconded by Iwanicki to re-elect Bonnie Greenwald as Secretary.  Approved by 

unanimous vote. 

C. Set the meeting schedule for 2024 – As follows:  1/15, 3/18, 4/15, 5/20, 6/17, 8/19, 9/16, 10/21, 

11/18, 12/16.  No meetings in February and July.  Moved by Oliver, seconded by Horney to 

approve the schedule.  Passed by unanimous vote. 

D. Commercial energy ordinance – Ramifications of the state legislature’s recently passed law to 

strip local control of natural resources was discussed.  Concerns included Michigan utility 

companies desire to receive approval for establishing solar and wind farms in rural areas, with 

likely approval of the State Public Service Commission.  Bridgewater Township is committed to 

maintaining its rural character.  Agriculture is essential for food production, which is essential 

for sustaining life and livelihoods.   Proposals by utility companies have been to take acres out of 

farmland to build solar and wind farms.  With the end goal of reducing fossil fuel usage, 



 
members agreed vacant land in urban areas is a much better alternative to removing 

agricultural land.  The regulations will go into effect in November 2024. 

 

IX. COMMUNICATIONS – Nanney reported a webinar by the Michigan Townships Association is 

scheduled for January.  The MTA lobbied to prevent passage by the legislature.  This webinar will be 

informational, and to strategize township alternatives. 

X. INFORMATIONAL ITEMS – Nanney reiterated the importance of contacting legislators regarding the 

solar and wind farm issue, since it won’t go into effect until November 2024. 

 

Meeting adjourned at 8:42 pm 


	01042024 board agenda
	12072023_minutes_draft
	I. CALL TO ORDER
	II. REVIEW AND APPROVE AGENDA
	 Motion to approve the agenda as amended removing item F-Snow Removal contract and adding item F- Banking Resolution 2023-13 – Ms. Fromhart; support –Ms. Ahrens; vote – unanimous.
	III. CITIZEN PARTICIPATION
	 None
	IV.
	APPROVAL OF MINUTES
	V. NEW BUSINESS
	A. Approval of Claims Listing
	B.  Board of Trustees 2024 Regular Meeting Dates Resolution.
	C.  Bridgewater Township Hall Study Proposal – Rueter Associates Architects.
	D. Village of Manchester WWTP Operation & Maintenance Contract.

	VI. REPORTS AND CORRESPONDENCE
	A. Public Safety Report
	B. Supervisor’s Report
	C. Assessor’s Report
	D. Clerk’s Report
	E. Treasurer’s Report
	F. Trustees’ Report
	G. Zoning Administrator’s Report
	H. Planning Commission

	VII. CITIZEN PARTICIPATION
	VIII. ADJOURNMENT

	110223_minutes_Approved
	I. CALL TO ORDER
	III. CITIZEN PARTICIPATION
	IV. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
	V. UNFINISHED BUSINESS
	VI. NEW BUSINESS
	A. WATS FY 2024 Membership Dues
	A. Approval of Claims Listing
	B    Resolution in Opposition to Local Preemption on Utility Scale Renewable Energy Facilities
	 Motion to approve Resolution 2023-09 as presented. – Ms. McQueer; support – Mr. Oliver.
	roll call vote – unanimous.
	C     Resolution Honoring Tom Wharam
	 Motion to approve Resolution 2023-10 as presented. – Ms. McQueer; support – Ms. Ahrens.
	roll call vote – unanimous.

	VII. REPORTS AND CORRESPONDENCE
	A. Public Safety Report
	B. Supervisor’s Report
	C. Assessor’s Report
	D. Clerk’s Report
	E. Treasurer’s Report
	F. Trustees’ Report
	G. Zoning Administrator’s Report
	H. Planning Commission
	I. Farmland Preservation Board Report

	VIII. CITIZEN PARTICIPATION
	IX. ADJOURNMENT

	Dec 23 - Expense-General
	Dec 2023 - P&L - General
	Dec 2023 - Balance - General
	Dec 23 - Expense-Sewer
	Dec 2023 - P&L - Sewer
	Dec 2023 - Balance - Sewer
	Neff Trucking Snow Removal Bid 2023-24
	01042024 BoR Poverty Hardship Resolution 2024 01
	Xela Pac Sampling Results Dec 2023
	Xela Pack December 2023 data
	tom thompson email re xela pac sampling results
	roark freeman email re road projects
	2023_Bridgewater Township Agreement
	Remaining ARPA Funds
	letter re sewer rate increase
	mta solar wind webinar
	mta email re clerk compensation
	dte rate increase email
	Bridgewater Twp, Ord 54; Sewer use and rate, revised 06012017.pdf
	BRIDGEWATER TOWNSHIP, MICHIGAN
	SEWER USE AND RATE ORDINANCE
	Section 1 Purpose.
	1.1. to prevent the introduction of pollutants into the wastewater system, which will interfere with the normal operation of the system or contaminate the resulting municipal sludge;
	1.2. to prevent the introduction of pollutants into the wastewater system which do not receive adequate treatment in the POTW, and which will pass through the system into receiving waters or the atmosphere or otherwise be incompatible with the system;
	1.3. to improve the opportunity to recycle and reclaim wastewater and sludge from the system.
	1.4. to provide for equitable distribution of the cost of the municipal wastewater system.

	Section 2 Definitions.
	2.1. “Act” or "the Act." The Federal Water Pollution Control Act, also known as the Clean Water Act, as amended, 33 U.S.C. 1251, et. seq.
	2.2. Authorized Representative of Industrial User. An authorized representative of an Industrial User may be: (a) a principal executive officer of at least the level of vice president, if the Industrial User is a corporation; (b) a general partner or ...
	2.3. Available Public Sanitary Sewer System. A public sanitary sewer system located in a right of way, easement, highway, street, or public way which crosses, adjoins, or abuts upon the property and passing not more than 200 feet at the nearest point ...
	2.4. Backflow. Water of questionable quality, wastes or other contaminants entering a public water supply system due to reversal of flow.
	2.5. Biochemical Oxygen Demand (BOD). The quantity of oxygen utilized in the biochemical oxidation of organic matter under standard laboratory procedure, five (5) days at twenty (20) degrees centigrade expressed in terms of weight and concentration (m...
	2.6. Building Drain. That part of the lowest horizontal piping of a drainage system which receives discharge from drainage pipes inside the walls of the building and conveys it to the Building Sewer, beginning five (5) feet outside the inner face of t...
	2.7. Building Sewer. The extension from the building drain to the Public Sewer or other place of disposal.
	2.8. Bypass. The intentional diversion of waste streams from any portion of a User's pretreatment facility.
	2.9. Categorical Standards. National Categorical Pretreatment Standards or Pretreatment Standard.
	2.10. Chemical Oxygen Demand (COD). A measure of the oxygen-consuming capacity of inorganic and organic matter present in water or wastewater. It is expressed as the amount of oxygen consumed from a chemical oxidant in a specified test. It does not di...
	2.11. Collection System. That portion of the POTW which is comprised of all pump stations, forced mains, sanitary sewers that collect and transport sewage to the Treatment Plan.
	2.12. Combined Sewer. A sewer receiving both surface runoff and sewage.
	2.13. Commercial Waste. A liquid or water-carried waste material from a commercial business engaged in buying, selling, exchanging goods or engaging in said goods or services.
	2.14. Compatible Pollutant. A substance amenable to treatment in the wastewater treatment plant such as biochemical oxygen demand, suspended solids, pH and fecal coliform bacteria, plus additional pollutants identified in the NPDES Permit if the publi...
	2.15. Composite Sample. A series of samples taken over a specific time period whose volume is proportional to the flow in the waste stream, which are combined into one sample.
	2.16. Connection Fees. The charges imposed by the Township to connect a Building Sewer, either directly or indirectly to the Public Sewer.
	2.17. Cooling Water. The water discharged from any use such as air conditioning, cooling, or refrigeration, or to which the only pollutant added is heat.
	2.18. Cross Connection. A connection or arrangement of piping or appurtenances through which a backflow could occur.
	2.19. Debt Service Charge. Charges levied to customers of the wastewater system which are used to pay principal, interest, and administrative costs of retiring the debt incurred for construction of the sewer system. The debt service charge shall be in...
	2.20. Direct Connection. The connection of the Building Sewer directly to the Public Sewer.
	2.21. Direct Discharge. The discharge of treated or untreated wastewater directly to the waters of the State.
	2.22. Dwelling Unit. For purposes of assigning units, a "dwelling" unit shall contain, at a minimum: sleeping facilities, a toilet, bath or shower, and a kitchen.
	2.23. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA). The U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, Administrator or other duly authorized official.
	2.24. Garbage. Solid wastes from the preparation, cooking, and dispensing of food and from the handling, storage and sale of produce.
	2.25. Grab Sample. A sample which is taken from a waste stream on a one-time basis with no regard to the flow in the waste stream and without consideration of time.
	2.26. Holding Tank Waste. Any waste from holding tanks such as vessels, chemical toilets, campers, trailers, septic tanks, and vacuum-pump tank trucks.
	2.27. Incompatible Pollutants. Any pollutant which is not a compatible pollutant.
	2.28. Indirect Connection. The connection of a Building Sewer to an extension of the public sewer system that is installed and paid for by special assessment or private funds, which extension is, after construction, turned over to the Township and bec...
	2.29. Indirect Discharge. The discharge or the introduction of nondomestic pollutants into the POTW (including holding tank waste discharged into the system).
	2.30. Industrial Wastes. The wastewater discharges from industrial, manufacturing, trade or business processes, or wastewater discharge from any structure with these characteristics, as distinct from their employee's domestic wastes or wastes from san...
	2.31. Infiltration. The waters entering the system from the ground, through such means as, but not limited to, defective pipes, pipe joints, connections or manhole walls. Infiltration does not include and is distinguished from inflow.
	2.32. Infiltration/Inflow. The total quantity of water from both infiltration and inflow.
	2.33. Inflow. Any waters entering the system through such sources as, but not limited to, building downspouts, footing or yard drains, cooling water discharges, seepage lines from springs and swampy areas, and storm drain cross connections.
	2.34. Inspector. Any person or persons authorized by Bridgewater Township to inspect and approve the installation of Building Sewers and their connection to the public sewer system and who may be the Operator.
	2.35. Interference. The inhibition or disruption of the POTW treatment processes or operations which contributes to a violation of any requirement of Bridgewater Township’s NPDES Permit or reduces the efficiency of the POTW. The term also includes pre...
	2.36. Laboratory Determination. The measurements, tests and analyses of the characteristics of waters and wastes in accordance with the methods contained in the latest edition at the time of any such measurement, test, or analysis of "Standard Methods...
	2.37. Lateral Line. That portion of the public sewer system located between the grinder pump and the Trunk Line located within the easement for the grinder pump and which collects sewage from a particular property for transfer to the Trunk Line.
	2.38. National Categorical Pretreatment Standard or Pretreatment Standard. Any Federal regulation containing pollutant discharge limits promulgated by the U.S. EPA, which applies to a specific category of Industrial Users.
	2.39. National Pollution Discharge Elimination System or NPDES Permit. A permit issued pursuant to Section 402 of the Act (33 U.S.C. 1342).
	2.40. National Prohibitive Discharge Standard or Prohibitive Discharge Standard. Any regulation developed under the authority of 307(b) of the Act and 40 CFR, Section 403.5.
	2.41. Natural Outlet. Any outlet into a watercourse, pond, ditch, lake, or other body of surface or groundwater.
	2.42. New Source. Any building, structure, facility, or installation from which there is or may be a discharge and for which construction commenced after the publication of proposed pretreatment standards under Section 307(c) of the Clean Water Act wi...
	2.42.1 The building, structure, facility, or installation is constructed at a site where no other source is located;
	2.42.2 The building, structure, facility, or installation totally replaces the process or production equipment that causes discharge of pollutants at an existing source; or
	2.42.3 Production or wastewater generating processes of the facility are substantially independent of an existing source at the same site.

	Construction is considered to have commenced when installation or assembly of facilities/equipment has begun, significant site preparation has begun for installation or assembly, or the owner/operator has entered into a binding contractual obligation ...
	2.43. Normal Domestic Sewage (NDS). Wastewater which, when analyzed, shows a daily average concentration of not more than two hundred and forty (240) mg/l of BOD; nor more than two hundred and forty (240) mg/l of suspended solids; nor more than five (...
	2.44. Obstruction. Any object of whatever nature that substantially impedes the flow of sewage from the point of origination to the Trunk Line. This shall include, but not be limited to objects, sewage, tree roots, rocks, and debris of any type.
	2.45. Operation and Maintenance. All work, materials, equipment, utilities, and other effort required to operate and maintain the wastewater transportation and treatment system consistent with ensuring adequate treatment of wastewater to produce an ef...
	2.46. Owner.  An owner or owners of record or owners of record of the freehold of the premises or lesser estate therein, mortgagee or vendee in possession, assignee of rents, receiver, executor, trustee, lessee, or other person, firm, or corporation i...
	2.47. Operator. The Bridgewater Township wastewater treatment plant operator or authorized representative.
	2.48. Person. Any individual, partnership, copartnership, firm, company, corporation, association, joint stock company, trust, estate, governmental entity or any other legal entity, or its legal representatives, agents, or assignees. The masculine gen...
	2.49. pH. The logarithm (base 10) of the reciprocal of the concentration of hydrogen ions expressed in grams per liter of solution.
	2.50. Pollutant. Any of various chemicals, substances, and refuse materials such as solid waste, sewage, garbage, sewage sludge, chemical wastes, biological materials, radioactive materials, heat, and industrial, municipal, and agricultural wastes whi...
	2.51. Pollution. The man-made or man-induced alteration of the chemical, physical, biological, and radiological integrity of water.
	2.52. POTW Treatment Plant. That portion of the POTW designed to provide treatment to wastewater.
	2.53. Premises. The particular property connected or to be connected to the system and includes appurtenant land and improvements.
	2.54. Pretreatment or Treatment. The reduction of the amount of pollutants, the elimination of pollutants, or the alteration of the nature of pollutants, or the alteration of the nature of pollutant properties in wastewater to a less harmful state pri...
	2.55. Pretreatment Requirements. Any substantive or procedural requirement for treating of a waste prior to inclusion in the POTW, including National Categorical Pretreatment Standards.
	2.56. Private Sewer Lines. All service lines and equipment for the disposal of sewage installed or located on any property outside of any easement controlled by the Township, from the property line or easement line to and including any structure or fa...
	2.57. Process Flow. Wastewater, from a non-residential source, that has been in contact with an end product or with materials incorporated into an end product.
	2.58. Properly Shredded Garbage. The wastes from the preparation, cooking, and dispensing of food that have been shredded to such degree that all particles will be carried freely under the flow conditions normally prevailing in Public Sewers, with no ...
	2.59. Property. Property shall mean a lot containing
	2.59.1 one residential, commercial or industrial structure, or
	2.59.2 a condominium unit, or
	2.59.3 a commercial or industrial structure located on a lot having more than one structure which is either connected to or required to be connected to the Wastewater Disposal System.

	2.60. Property Owner. The owner of the property which abuts the street, private roads, shared private drives, and easements.
	2.61. Publicly Owned Treatment Works (POTW). A treatment works as defined by Section 212 of the Act (33 U.S.C. 1292), which is owned in this instance by Bridgewater Township sewer system and treatment plant. The POTW is comprised of two components, th...
	2.62. Public Sewer. A sewer in which all owners of abutting properties have equal rights, and is controlled by public authority.
	2.63. Replacement. The replacement in whole or in part of any equipment, appurtenances and accessories in the wastewater transportation or treatment systems to ensure continuous treatment of wastewater in accordance with the NPDES Permit and other app...
	2.64. Residential Equivalent Unit (REU). That measure of potential wastewater discharge equal to the quantity normally generated by occupants of a residence by a single family of average size. REU factors for other types of occupancy and use shall be ...
	2.65. Sanitary Sewage. A liquid or water-carried waste discharged from the sanitary conveniences of dwellings including but not limited to residential homes, apartment houses and hotels, office buildings, commercial businesses, or industrial plants.
	2.66. Sanitary Sewer. A sewer which carries sewage and to which storm, surface, and ground waters are not intentionally admitted.
	2.67. Severe Property Damage. Substantial physical damage to property, damage to the User's pretreatment facilities that causes them to become inoperable, or substantial and permanent loss of natural resources, which can reasonably be expected to occu...
	2.68. Sewer. A pipe or conduit for carrying sewage.
	2.69. Sewer Service Charge. The sum of the applicable user charge and/or surcharges.
	2.70. Shall is mandatory; May is permissive.
	2.71. Significant Industrial User. Any Industrial User of the Township's wastewater disposal system who (a) is subject to National Categorical Pretreatment Standards; (b) has a discharge flow of 25,000 gallons or more per average work day; or (c) has ...
	2.72. Significant Noncompliance. One or more of the following:
	2.72.1 Chronic violation of wastewater discharge limit, defined here as when sixty-six (66) percent or more of all the measurements for a pollutant parameter taken during a six (6) month period exceed by any magnitude the corresponding daily maximum l...
	2.72.2 Technical Review Criteria (TRC) violation of wastewater discharge limit, defined here as when thirty-three (33) percent or more of all of the measurements for a pollutant parameter taken during a six (6) month period equal or exceed the product...
	2.72.3 Any other violation of a daily maximum limit or an average limit that the Bridgewater Township Wastewater Treatment Operator determines has alone or in combination with other discharges caused interference or pass through, including endangering...
	2.72.4 Any discharge of a pollutant that has caused imminent endangerment to human health, public welfare, or the environment, or has resulted in the POTW exercising its emergency authority to halt or prevent such a discharge;
	2.72.5 Failure to meet, within ninety (90) days after the schedule date, a compliance schedule milestone contained in a Township issued discharge permit or enforcement order for starting construction, completing construction, or attaining final compli...
	2.72.6 Failure to provide, within thirty (30) days after the due date, required reports such as baseline monitoring reports, ninety (90) day compliance reports, and/or reports on compliance with compliance schedules;
	2.72.7 Failure to accurately report noncompliance; and
	2.72.8 Any other violation, or group of violations, which the Supervisor or Operator determines as adversely affecting operation or implementation of Bridgewater Township’s pretreatment program.

	2.73. Slug Load. Any substance released in a discharge at a rate and/or concentration which causes interference to a POTW.
	2.74. Standard Industrial Classification (SIC). A classification pursuant to the Standard Industrial Classification Manual issued by the Executive Office of the President, Office of Management and Budget, 1972.
	2.75. State. State of Michigan.
	2.76. Storm Sewer or Storm Drain. A sewer which carries storm and surface waters and drainage, but excludes sewage and polluted industrial wastes.
	2.77. Stormwater. Any flow occurring during or following any form of natural precipitation and resulting therefrom.
	2.78. Supervisor. Township Supervisor or authorized representative.
	2.79. Surcharge. As part of the service charge, any customer discharging wastewater having strength in excess of limits set forth by the Township shall be required to pay an additional charge to cover the cost of treatment of such excess strength wast...
	2.80. Suspended Solids. The total suspended matter that floats on the surface of, or is suspended in, water, wastewater, or other liquids, and which is removable by laboratory filtering.
	2.81. Township. The Township of Bridgewater, County of Washtenaw, Michigan, its agents and employees.
	2.82. Toxic Pollutant. Any pollutant or combination of pollutants which is or can potentially be harmful to public health or environment including those listed as toxic in regulations promulgated by the Administrator of the Environmental Protection Ag...
	2.83. Treatment Plant. That portion of the POTW which receives the sewage transported in the Collection System and treats the sewage prior to discharging into a receiving stream in the State of Michigan.
	2.84. Trunk Line. The main public sewer line located under any street or within any street right-of-way which collects and transmits the sewage of the various properties served by the public sewer system.
	2.85. Uncontaminated Industrial Waste. Wastewater which has not come into contact with any substance used in or incidental to industrial processing operations and to which no chemical or other substance has been added.
	2.86. Upset. An exceptional incident in which there is unintentional and temporary noncompliance with National Categorical Pretreatment Standards or local Pretreatment Requirements or Standards because of factors beyond the reasonable control of the U...
	2.87. User. Any person who contributes, causes, or permits the contribution of wastewater into the POTW.
	2.88. User Charge. A charge levied on users of a treatment works for the cost of operation and maintenance of Sewage Works pursuant to Section 204(b) of PL 92-500 and includes the cost of replacement and may be used for debt repayment.
	2.89. User Class. The kind of user connected to sanitary sewers including but not limited to residential, industrial, commercial, institutional, and governmental.
	2.89.1 Residential User. User of the treatment works whose premises or buildings are used primarily as a domicile for one or more persons, including dwelling units such as detached, semi-detached and row houses, mobile homes, apartments, or permanent ...
	2.89.2 Industrial User. User who discharges "industrial wastes" as defined in this Ordinance.
	2.89.3 Commercial User. An establishment listed in the Office of the Management and Budget's "Standard Industrial Classification Manual" (SICM), involved in a commercial enterprise, business or service which, based on a determination by the Township, ...
	i Institutional User. Any establishment listed in the SICM involved in a social, charitable, religious, or educational function which, based on a determination by the Township, discharges primarily segregated domestic wastes or wastes from sanitary co...

	2.89.4 Governmental User. Any Federal, State, or local government user of the publicly owned treatment works.

	2.90. Wastewater. The liquid and water-carried industrial or domestic wastes from dwelling units, commercial buildings, industrial facilities, and institutions, together with any groundwater, surface water, and stormwater that may be present, whether ...
	2.91. Watercourse. A channel in which a flow of water occurs, either continuously or intermittently.
	2.92. Waters of the State. All streams, lakes, ponds, marshes, watercourses, waterways, wells, springs, reservoirs, aquifers, irrigation systems, drainage systems and all other bodies or accumulations of water, surface or underground, natural or artif...

	Section 3 Abbreviations.
	3.1. BOD: Biochemical Oxygen Demand
	3.2. CFR: Code of Federal Regulations
	3.3. COD: Chemical Oxygen Demand
	3.4. CWA: Clean Water Act
	3.5. l: liter
	3.6. mg: milligrams
	3.7. mg/l: milligrams per liter
	3.8. MDEQ: Michigan Department of Environmental Quality
	3.9. NDS: Normal Domestic Sewage
	3.10. NPDES: National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System
	3.11. O & M: Operation and Maintenance
	3.12. P: Phosphorus
	3.13. POTW: Publicly Owned Treatment Works
	3.14. REU: Residential Equivalent Unit
	3.15. SIC: Standard Industrial Classification
	3.16. SICM: Standard Industrial Classification Manual
	3.17. SS: Suspended Solids
	3.18. SWDA: Solid Waste Disposal Act, 42 U.S.C. 6901, et. seq.
	3.19. U.S. EPA: United States Environmental Protection Agency

	Section 4 Unsanitary Deposits, Discharge to Natural Outlets Prohibited
	4.1. It shall be unlawful for any person to place, deposit, or permit to be deposited in any unsanitary manner upon public or private property within the Township, or in any area under the jurisdiction of said Township, any human or animal excrement, ...
	4.2. It shall be unlawful, when sewage and/or treatment facilities are available, to discharge to any natural outlet within the Township, or in any area under the jurisdiction of said Township, any sanitary sewage, industrial wastes, or other polluted...
	4.3. It shall be unlawful to construct or maintain any privy, privy vault, septic tank, cesspool, or other facility intended or used for the disposal of sewage, unless specifically permitted by the Washtenaw County Health Department. or as hereinafter...
	4.4. The owner of all houses, buildings, or properties used for human occupancy, employment, recreation, or other purposes, situated within the Township and abutting on any street, alley, or right-of-way in which there is now located or may in the fut...
	4.5. At the time of connection, any septic tanks, cesspools, and similar private sewage disposal facilities shall be abandoned for sanitary use and filled with a suitable material.
	4.6. When the premises are not connected to an available Public Sewer within the time specified in this Section, the Township shall require the connection to be made immediately after notice, which may be by first class or certified mail to the owner ...
	4.6.1 The notice shall give the approximate location of the public sanitary sewer system which is available for connection and shall advise the owner of the requirements and enforcement provisions of State law and any applicable Ordinance and regulation.
	4.6.2 Where premises are not connected to an available public sanitary sewer system within ninety (90) days after the date of mailing or posting of the written notice, the Township shall bring an action for a mandatory injunction or order in the Washt...

	4.7. Unless the premises exists when this Ordinance is passed, the Township shall not issue a land use permit for construction of such structure until and unless the property on which such structure is located is being specially assessed by the Townsh...
	4.7.1 The Township Board approves the connection to the system;
	4.7.2 The property owner complies with all requirements of this Ordinance;
	4.7.3 There is sufficient excess capacity in the system to permit the connection; and
	4.7.4 The property owner pays in advance the connection charges approved by the Township.


	Section 5 Process Wastewater
	5.1. Wastewater Contribution Information. Any industry or structure discharging process flow to the Sanitary Sewer, storm sewer, or receiving stream shall file the information listed below with the Supervisor. Any industry which does not normally disc...
	5.1.1 Name, address, and location (if different from the address).
	5.1.2 SIC number according to the Standard Industrial Classification Manual, Bureau of the Budget, 1972, as amended.
	5.1.3 Wastewater constituents and characteristics including but not limited to those mentioned in Section 8 of this Ordinance as determined by a reliable analytical laboratory; sampling and analysis shall be performed in accordance with the procedures...
	i "Standard Methods for the Examination of Water and Wastewater," American Public Health Association, current edition; or
	ii "Manual of Methods for Chemical Analysis of Water and Wastes," United States Environmental Protection Agency, current edition; or
	iii "Annual Book of Standards, Part 131, Water, Atmospheric Analysis," American Society of Testing Materials, current edition.

	5.1.4 Time and duration of contribution.
	5.1.5 Average daily wastewater flow rates, including daily, monthly, and seasonal variations, if any.
	5.1.6 Industries identified as Significant Industrial Users or those required by the Township must submit site plans, floor plans, mechanical and plumbing plans, and details to show all sewers, sewer connections, and appurtenances by the size, locatio...
	5.1.7 Description of activities, facilities, and plant processes on the premises including all materials which are or could be discharged;
	5.1.8 Where known, the nature and concentration of any pollutants in the discharge which are limited by any Township, State, or Federal Pretreatment Requirements, and a statement regarding whether or not the Pretreatment Requirements are being met on ...
	5.1.9 If additional pretreatment and/or O&M will be required to meet the Pretreatment Requirements, the shortest schedule by which the User will provide such additional pretreatment. The completion date in this schedule shall not be later than the com...
	i The schedule shall contain increments of progress in the form of dates for the commencement and completion of major events leading to the construction and operation of additional pretreatment required for the User to meet the applicable Pretreatment...
	ii No increment referred to in Paragraph (1) shall exceed nine (9) months;
	iii Not later than fourteen (14) days following each date in the schedule and the final date for compliance, the User shall submit a progress report to the Supervisor including, as a minimum, whether or not it complied with the increment of progress t...

	5.1.10 Each product produced by type, amount, process or processes, and rate of production.
	5.1.11 Type and amount of raw materials processed, average and maximum per day.
	5.1.12 Number and type of employees, hours of operation of plant, and proposed or actual hours of operation of pretreatment system.
	5.1.13 Any other information as may be deemed by the Township to be necessary to evaluate the impact of the discharge on the POTW.
	5.1.14 The disclosure form shall be signed by a principal executive officer of the User and a qualified engineer.
	5.1.15 The Township will evaluate the complete disclosure form and data furnished and may require additional information. Within ninety (90) days after full evaluation and acceptance of the data furnished, the Township shall notify the User of the acc...

	5.2. Discharge Conditions. Wastewater discharges shall be expressly subject to all provisions of this Ordinance, and all other applicable regulations, User Charges, and fees established by the Township. The Township may:
	5.2.1 Set unit charges or a schedule of User Charges and fees for the wastewater to be discharged to the POTW;
	5.2.2 Limit the average and maximum wastewater constituents and characteristics;
	5.2.3 Limit the average and maximum rate and time of discharge or make requirements for flow regulations and equalization;
	5.2.4 Require the installation and maintenance of inspection and sampling facilities;
	5.2.5 Establish specifications for monitoring programs which may include sampling locations, frequency of sampling, number, types, and standards for tests and reporting schedule;
	5.2.6 Establish compliance schedules;
	5.2.7 Require submission of technical reports or discharge reports;
	5.2.8 Require the maintaining, retaining, and furnishing of plant records relating to wastewater discharge as specified by the Township, and affording Township access thereto, and copying thereof;
	5.2.9 Require prompt notification of the Township in advance of any new introduction of wastewater constituents or any substantial change in the volume or character of the wastewater constituents being introduced into the wastewater treatment system;
	5.2.10 Require immediate notification of all discharges that could cause problems to the POTW, including slug discharges;
	5.2.11 Require other conditions as deemed appropriate by the Township to ensure compliance with this Ordinance;
	5.2.12 Require waste treatment facilities, process facilities, waste streams, or other potential waste problems to be placed under the specific supervision and control of persons who have been certified by an appropriate State agency as properly quali...
	5.2.13 Require records and file reports to be maintained on the final disposal of specific liquids, solids, sludges, oils, radioactive materials, solvents, or other wastes;
	5.2.14 Convert concentration-based National Categorical Pretreatment Standards to equivalent mass-based or production-based Pretreatment Requirements;
	5.2.15 Control through permit, order, or similar means, the contribution to the POTW by each User to ensure compliance with applicable National Categorical Pretreatment Standards or Pretreatment Requirements. The control mechanism may limit duration t...
	5.2.16 Adjust National Categorical Pretreatment Standards to reflect the presence of pollutants in a User's intake water.

	5.3. Baseline Reports.
	5.3.1 Within one hundred eighty (180) days after promulgation or revision of a National Categorical Pretreatment Standard, all existing affected Industrial Users must submit to the Township the information specified by 40 CFR, Section 403.12(b), Parag...
	5.3.2 At least ninety (90) days prior to commencement of discharge, New Sources and sources that become affected Industrial Users subsequent to the promulgation of an applicable National Categorical Pretreatment Standard, shall submit to the Township ...

	5.4. Compliance Date Report. Within ninety (90) days following the date for final compliance with applicable Pretreatment Standards or, in the case of a New Source, following commencement of the introduction of wastewater into the POTW, any User subje...
	5.5. Periodic Compliance Reports.
	5.5.1 Any user or New Source discharging into the POTW, shall submit to the Township during the months of June and December, unless required more frequently in the Pretreatment Standard, a report indicating the nature and concentration of pollutants i...
	5.5.2 Bridgewater Township may also impose mass limitations on Users which are using dilution to meet applicable Pretreatment Standards or Requirements, or in other cases in which the imposition of mass limitations is appropriate. In such cases, the r...
	5.5.3 If a User, subject to reporting requirements, monitors any pollutant more frequently than required by the Township, using Standard Laboratory Procedures, the results of this additional monitoring shall also be included in the Periodic Compliance...
	5.5.4 If sampling performed by a User indicated a violation, the User shall notify the Township within twenty-four (24) hours of becoming aware of the violation. The User shall also repeat the sampling and submit the results of re-analysis to the Town...

	5.6. Notification of Hazardous Waste Discharges. All Users shall notify the Supervisor, the POTW, U.S. EPA Regional Waste Management Division Director, and the State Hazardous Waste Authority in writing of any discharge into the POTW of a substance wh...
	5.7. Monitoring Facilities. The Township may require to be provided and operated at the User's own expense, monitoring facilities to allow inspection, sampling, and flow measurement of the Building Sewer and/or internal drainage systems. For commercia...
	5.8. Inspection and Sampling. The Township shall inspect the facilities of any User to ascertain whether the purpose of this Ordinance is being met and the User is complying with all requirements. Persons or occupants of premises where wastewater is c...
	5.9. Pretreatment. Industrial Users shall provide necessary wastewater treatment as required to comply with this Ordinance and shall achieve compliance with all National Categorical Pretreatment Standards within the time limitations as specified by th...
	5.10. Confidential Information. Information and data on a User obtained from reports, questionnaires, permit applications, permits and monitoring programs, and from inspections shall be available to the public or other governmental agency without rest...
	5.11. Signatory Requirements. All reports required by this Section shall be signed by the Authorized Representative of Industrial User and include the following certification statement:

	Section 6 Private Sewage Disposal
	6.1. Where a Public Sewer is not available, the Building Sewer shall be connected to an approved private sewage disposal system. Such system shall be constructed in accordance with procedures, rules and regulations established by the Washtenaw County ...
	6.2. The type, capacities, location, and layout of a private sewage disposal system shall comply with all recommendations of the Washtenaw County Health Department. No septic tank or cesspool shall be permitted to discharge to any Public Sewer or natu...
	6.3. At such time as a Public Sewer becomes available to a property served by a private sewage disposal system, a direct connection shall be made to the Public Sewer in compliance with this article, and any septic tanks, cesspools, and similar private...
	6.4. The owner shall operate and maintain the private sewage disposal facilities in a sanitary manner at all times at no expense to the Township.
	6.5. No statement contained in this Section shall be construed to interfere with any additional requirements that may be imposed by any other agency having legal jurisdiction.
	6.6. All private sewage systems shall be constructed in accordance with the latest edition of the "Ten State Standards."

	Section 7 Public Sewer Connections
	7.1. All occupied structures serving residential and non-residential uses that are located within 200 feet of the public sanitary sewer system must connect their facilities internal sewage system to the public sanitary sewage system within ninety (90)...
	7.2. The owner or his agent shall complete an application for a sewer permit on a form furnished by the Township. The permit application shall be supplemented by any plans, specifications, or other information required by this Ordinance or considered ...
	7.3. Prior to the approval and issuance of a Service Connection Permit, the applicant may be requested to have executed by the Owner(s) of record for the premises to be connected, an easement in a form provided by the Township granting permission to t...
	7.4. All cost and expense incident to the installation, connection, and maintenance of the Building Sewer, and stub to the Public Sewer shall be borne by the Owner and are due in advance. All costs and expenses incident to the extension of the collect...
	7.5. All liabilities incident to the installation and connection of the Building Sewer shall be borne by the property owner. The property owner shall indemnify and save harmless the Township from any loss or damage that may directly or indirectly be o...
	7.6. Responsibility for the maintenance, cleaning and repair of all sewer lines shall as follows:
	7.6.1 It shall be the duty of each property owner to maintain, clean, and repair the private sewer lines on his property at his own expense as necessary to keep such lines free and clear of obstructions and in good working order.
	7.6.2 It shall be the duty of the Township to maintain, clean, and repair as necessary and at its expense the sewer Trunk Lines and Lateral Lines.

	7.7. A separate and independent Building Sewer shall be provided for every building; except where one building stands at the rear of another on an interior (lot) and no private sewer is available or can be constructed to the rear building through an a...
	7.8. The Building Sewer shall be constructed of pipe or cast iron soil pipe with gasketed or solvent welded joints, Schedule 40 PVC, or as otherwise approved by the Inspector. The Township reserves the right to specify and require the encasement of an...
	7.9. The size and slope of the Building Sewer shall be subject to approval by the Inspector, but in no event shall the diameter be less than four (4) inches. The slope of such four (4) inch pipe shall be not less than one-quarter (¼) inch per foot, un...
	7.10. No person shall make connection of roof downspouts, exterior foundation drains, area-way drains, or other sources of surface runoff or groundwater to a Building Sewer or building drain or stub which, in turn, is connected directly or indirectly ...
	7.11. The connection of the Building Sewer into the Public Sewer shall conform to the requirements of the all applicable state and local Building and Plumbing Codes or other applicable rules and regulations of the Township.  All joints shall be approv...
	7.12. All newly constructed Building Sewers shall have a properly sized cleanout at the head of said sewer that is accessible at all times. This cleanout shall allow access of sewer cleaning equipment of a size equivalent to the size of the Building S...
	7.13. The applicant for the connection permit shall notify the Township when the Building Sewer is ready for inspection and connection to the Public Sewer. The connection shall be made under the supervision of the Inspector or his representative.
	7.14. All excavating for Building Sewer installation shall be adequately guarded with barricades and lights so as to protect the public from hazard. Streets, sidewalks, parkways, and other public property disturbed in the course of the work shall be r...
	7.15. No new connections will be allowed unless there is capacity available in downstream sewers, pump stations, interceptors, force mains, and the POTW, including capacity for treatment of BOD and suspended solids.
	7.16. By connecting a building to the Public Sewer all  persons, firms, or public or private corporations, having or claiming any interest in the building shall be deemed to have given permission to the Township, and any successor or duly authorized a...
	7.17. Any person, other than the Operator, desiring to uncover, make any connection with, or opening into, use, alter, or disturb any Public Sewer, parts thereof or appurtenances thereof, must secure a permit from the Operator. The person applying for...

	Section 8 Use of the Public Sewers
	8.1. General Discharge Prohibitions. No User shall contribute or cause to be contributed, directly or indirectly, any pollutant or wastewater which will interfere with the operation or performance of the POTW. These general prohibitions apply to all s...
	8.1.1 Any liquids, solids, or gases, including but not limited to waste streams with a closed cup flash point of less than one hundred forty (140) degrees Fahrenheit, which by reason of their nature and quantity are, or may be, sufficient either alone...
	8.1.2 Solid or viscous substances which may cause obstruction to the flow in a sewer or other interference with the operation of the POTW such as, but not limited to, grease, garbage with particles greater than one-half (½) inch in any dimension; anim...
	8.1.3 Any wastewater having a pH less than six point zero (6.0) or greater than nine point five (9.5), or wastewater having any other corrosive property capable of causing damage or hazard to structures, equipment, or personnel of the POTW.
	8.1.4 Any wastewater containing toxic pollutants in sufficient quantity, either singly or by interaction with other pollutants, to injure or interfere with any wastewater treatment process, constitute a hazard to humans or animals, create a toxic effe...
	8.1.5 Any noxious or malodorous liquids, gases, or solids which either singly or by interaction with other wastes are sufficient to create a public nuisance or hazard to life or are sufficient to prevent entry into the sewers for maintenance and repai...
	8.1.6 Any substance which may cause the POTW's effluent or any other product of the POTW such as residues, sludges, or scums to be unsuitable for reclamation and reuse or to interfere with the reclamation process
	8.1.7 Any substance which will cause the POTW to violate its NPDES Permit or the receiving water quality standards.
	8.1.8 Any wastewater with objectionable color not removed in the treatment process, such as, but not limited to, dye wastes and vegetable tanning solutions.
	8.1.9 Any wastewater having a temperature which will inhibit biological activity in the POTW resulting in Interference, but in no case wastewater with a temperature at the introduction into the POTW which exceeds forty (40) degrees Celsius [one hundre...
	8.1.10 Any pollutants, including oxygen demanding pollutants (BOD, etc.), released at a flow rate and/or pollutant concentration which will cause Interference to the POTW.
	8.1.11 Any wastewater containing any radioactive wastes or isotopes of such half-life or concentration as may exceed limits established by the Township in compliance with applicable State or Federal regulations.
	8.1.12 Any wastewater which causes a hazard to human life or creates a public nuisance.
	8.1.13 Any unpolluted water including, but not limited to, stormwater, groundwater, roof water, or noncontact cooling water.
	8.1.14 Any waters or wastes containing suspended solids or any constituent of such character and quantity that unusual attention or expense is required to handle such materials at the POTW.
	8.1.15 Any waste from individual sewage disposal systems; except that waste from any individual sewage disposal system may be disposed of directly into a Sanitary Sewer upon entering into an agreement with the Township which agreement shall specify th...
	8.1.16 Any sludge, precipitate, or congealed substances resulting from an industrial or commercial process, or resulting from the pretreatment of wastewater or air pollutants.
	8.1.17 Any trucked or hauled wastewater, except as specifically allowed by the Supervisor.

	8.2. Specific Pollutant Limitations.
	8.2.1 Conventional Pollutants. Except as authorized by the Supervisor, no person shall discharge wastewater containing in excess of:
	i Two hundred and forty (240) mg/l BOD.
	ii Two hundred and forty (240) mg/l total suspended solids.
	iii Twenty-five (25) mg/l ammonia-nitrogen.
	iv Five (5) mg/l total phosphorus.

	8.2.2 Should any other substances, either individually or in combination with other substances, interfere with the sewage treatment process or cause damage to the receiving waters or affect the sanitary or storm sewer system, the allowable concentrati...
	8.2.3 If any waters are discharged or are proposed to be discharged to the Public Sewers, which contain the substances or possess the characteristics enumerated above, and which in the judgment of the Township may have a deleterious effect upon the se...
	i Reject the wastes;
	ii Require pretreatment to the level defined as "Normal Domestic Sewage;
	iii Require control over the quantities and rates of discharge;
	iv Require payment to cover the added cost of handling and treating the wastes not covered using taxes or sewer charges;
	v Require new industrial customers or industries with significant changes in strength or flow to submit prior information to the Township concerning the proposed flows.


	8.3. Township's Right of Revision. The Township reserves the right to establish by ordinance more stringent limitations or requirements on discharges to the Sewage Works if deemed necessary to comply with the objectives presented in this Ordinance.
	8.4. No User shall discharge or cause to be discharged any stormwater, surface water, groundwater, water from footing drains, or roof water to any Sanitary Sewer or sewer connection. Any premise connected to a storm sewer shall comply with County, Sta...
	8.5. Grease, oil, and sand interceptors shall be provided when, in the opinion of the Supervisor, they are necessary for the proper handling of liquid wastes containing grease in excessive amounts or any flammable wastes, sand, and other harmful ingre...
	8.6. Where installed, all grease, oil, and sand interceptors shall be maintained by the owner at his expense in continuously efficient operation at all times.
	8.7. The Township may prohibit the admission into the Public Sewers of any waters or wastes as follows:
	8.7.1 Containing any quantity of substances that exceed the requirements of Section 8.2.
	8.7.2 Having an average daily flow greater than two (2) percent of the average daily sewage flow of the POTW, or having a rate of flow (gallons per day) greater than ten (10) percent of the average daily treatment plant flow for a period of one (1) ho...

	8.8. Where the strength of sewage from an industrial, commercial, or institutional establishment exceeds (1) two hundred and forty (240) parts per million of biochemical oxygen demand, or (2) two hundred and forty (240) parts per million by weight of ...
	8.9. When required by the Township, the owner of any property serviced by a Building Sewer carrying industrial wastes shall install a suitable control manhole together with such necessary meters and other appurtenances in the Building Sewer to facilit...
	8.10. All measurements, tests, and analyses of the characteristics of water to which reference is made in this Section shall be determined in accordance with the latest edition at the time of "Standard Methods for Examination of Water and Sewage," and...
	8.10.1 One person from each industry shall be delegated the authority to be responsible for industrial wastes admitted to the municipal sewers. Such person would be involved with maintaining the pretreatment facility operations and assuring a continua...
	8.10.2 This industrial representative must catalog all chemicals stored, used, or manufactured by their industry. Such a listing should include specific chemical names, not manufacturer's codes. Those wastes admitted to the Sanitary Sewer are a prime ...
	8.10.3 The industrial representative shall determine whether or not large process alterations will occur during the next few years; one (1) year, two (2) years, and five (5) years. Management should be consulted to determine if such alterations are sc...
	8.10.4 A drawing of the plant building(s) must be made, including a diagram of process and chemical storage areas. Location of any pretreatment equipment should be indicated and floor drains located near process and storage areas should be noted. Manh...
	8.10.5 There must be separation of spent concentrations from the Sanitary Sewer to prevent toxic wastes from upsetting the POTW. Supervision and operation of the pretreatment equipment for spent concentrations, as well as all toxic wastes and high-str...
	8.10.6 Throughout the industry, adequate secondary containment or curbing must be provided to protect all floor drains from accidental spills and discharges to the receiving sewers. Such curbing should be sufficient to hold one hundred fifty (150) per...
	8.10.7 An adequate sampling vault or manhole must be provided in an accessible place for the Treatment Plant personnel to obtain samples and flow measurement data. The complexity of the vault will vary with the sampling requirements the Township deter...
	8.10.8 Information and data on a User obtained from reports, questionnaires, permit applications, permits and monitoring programs, and inspections shall be available to the public or other governmental agency without restriction unless the User specif...
	8.10.9 Industrial cooling water containing such pollutants as insoluble oils or grease or other suspended solids shall be pretreated for removal of the pollutants and then discharged to a MDEQ-approved drainage outlet.
	8.10.10 Agents of the Township, MDEQ, or U.S. EPA shall have the right to enter all properties for the purpose of inspecting, measuring, sampling, and testing the wastewater discharge and copying applicable pretreatment records.


	Section 9 Grinder Pumps
	9.1. Use and Installation of Grinder Pumps. Each property served by the Township sewer system shall be connected to the system through a grinder pump. The following regulations govern their installation and usage:
	9.1.1 The grinder pump location on each property will be coordinated by appointment with the property owner during the construction phase. An easement within the property will be required for the installation, operation, and maintenance of the grinder...
	9.1.2 A simplex grinder pump unit shall be provided to all properties with one (1) REU.  A duplex grinder pump unit shall be provided to properties with greater than one (1) REUs. The required make, model, and size of the grinder pump unit required fo...
	9.1.3 Once installed, the lid of the grinder pump encasement will extend approximately 3 inches above the ground surface. The grinder pump encasement lid is 24 inches in diameter. No new permanent structures or other items can be placed on top of the ...
	9.1.4 The grinder pump must be located at least 10 feet from a building or property line and at least 50 feet from an on-site water supply well. In situations where it is physically impractical to locate the grinder pump and associated force main outs...
	9.1.5 A control / alarm panel for the grinder pump will be mounted on the side of the existing building. The control / alarm panel must be located within sight of the grinder pump.
	9.1.6 The red light on top of the control/alarm panel will illuminate when a high-level condition is detected in the grinder pump holding basin. The property owner would need to contact the sewer system operators to inform them that the red light is i...
	9.1.7 All installation, operation, and maintenance work for the grinder pump, sewer lead from the grinder pump to the Public Sewer, and the electrical line from the grinder pump to the power company meter is exterior work.

	9.2. Township’s Responsibilities. The Township shall have the following responsibilities with respect to grinder pumps:
	9.2.1 For individual single family residences or businesses:
	9.2.2 Coordinate grinder pump location with property owner.
	9.2.3 Prepare an easement for the grinder pump, granting the Township access to the grinder pump and all Lateral Lines and sewer leads from any building.
	9.2.4 Record grinder pump easement with the Washtenaw County Register of Deeds.
	9.2.5 Upon payment of the required Connection Fees provide the grinder pump to the Owner or Owner's representative for installation by the owner.
	9.2.6 Inspect the installation of the grinder pump system upon notification by the Owner.
	9.2.7 Operate, and maintain public portion of grinder pump sewer system within property (sewer lead from the public sanitary sewer to the grinder pump, the grinder pump, and the electrical lines from the exterior disconnect to the grinder pump, includ...
	9.2.8 Maintain, repair, and replace (when necessary) the grinder pump core and any other item of the public portion of the grinder pump sewer system within property, except for the grinder pump tank and access riser tube.
	9.2.9 Respond to high-level conditions (reported by property owner).
	9.2.10 Provide an emergency phone number to sewer customers to contact for questions, maintenance, or emergencies.
	9.2.11 Respond to service issues reported by property owners received on the emergency phone number. The appropriate service/maintenance will be completed as expediently as possible.
	9.2.12 Maintain a tracking system that records the maintenance, repair, and replacement activities for all the grinder pumps. A monthly operating report will be completed summarizing the sewer system’s operation and maintenance activities during each ...
	9.2.13 For multi-unit developments:
	9.2.14 Review and approve the proposed location for grinder pump installation identified by the Owner or Owner's representative.
	9.2.15 Upon payment of the required Connection Fees provide the grinder pump to the Owner or Owner's representative for installation by the Owner.
	9.2.16 Inspect the installation of the grinder pump system upon notification by the Owner.
	9.2.17 Operate, and maintain public portion of grinder pump sewer system within property (sewer lead from the public sanitary sewer to the grinder pump, the grinder pump, and the electrical lines from the exterior disconnect to the grinder pump, inclu...
	9.2.18 Maintain, repair, and replace (when necessary) the grinder pump cores and any other item of the public portion of the grinder pump sewer system within property, except for the grinder pump tank and access riser tube.
	9.2.19 Respond to high-level conditions (reported by property owner).
	9.2.20 Provide an emergency phone number to sewer customers to contact for questions, maintenance, or emergencies.
	9.2.21 Respond to service issues reported by property owners received on the emergency phone number. The appropriate service/maintenance will be completed as expediently as possible.
	9.2.22 Maintain a tracking system that records the maintenance, repair, and replacement activities for all the grinder pumps. A monthly operating report will be completed summarizing the sewer system’s operation and maintenance activities during each ...

	9.3. Property Owner’s Responsibilities. Each property owner shall have the following responsibilities with respect to grinder pumps:
	9.3.1 For individual single family residences or businesses:
	9.3.2 Payment of the required Connection Fees.
	9.3.3 Coordinate grinder pump location with Township representative.
	9.3.4 Sign the grinder pump easement.
	9.3.5 Contract, hire, and pay a contractor to install the grinder pump and necessary appurtenances including required electrical devices, the sewer lead from the building to the grinder pump (including connection to the grinder pump). The property own...
	9.3.6 Notify the public sewer system operators of high-level conditions (when red light on top of control/alarm panel is illuminated). The property owner would call an emergency phone number to inform the system operators of the red-light condition.
	9.3.7 Notify the public sewer system operators of power outages (lack of power to grinder pump).
	9.3.8 Pay the electrical costs to operate the grinder pump. The electrical cost to operate the grinder pump will be included in the electric bill for each property served by a grinder pump.
	9.3.9 Install and maintain the electrical line from the property owner’s exterior electrical meter to the grinder pump (including the electrical connection to the electrical meter).
	9.3.10 Restoration associated with the installation of the public portion of the grinder pump sewer system within property (Lateral Line from the Trunk Line to the grinder pump, the grinder pump, and the electrical lines from the power company’s exter...
	9.3.11 Pay the costs for the replacement (purchase and installation) of the grinder pump tank and riser, if it fails for any reason.
	9.3.12 For multi-unit developments:
	9.3.13 Payment of the required Connection Fees.
	9.3.14 Identify for the Township Inspector the proposed location for grinder pump installation, which location shall be subject to approval by the Township.
	9.3.15 Prepare an easement for the grinder pump, granting the Township access to the grinder pump and all Lateral Lines and sewer leads from any building.
	9.3.16 Record grinder pump easement with the Washtenaw County Register of Deeds.
	9.3.17 Install and maintain the electrical line from the property owner’s exterior electrical meter to the grinder pump (including the electrical connection to the electrical meter).
	9.3.18 Contract, hire, and pay a contractor to install the grinder pump and necessary appurtenances including required electrical devices, the sewer lead from the building to the grinder pump (including connection to the grinder pump). The property ow...
	9.3.19 Restoration associated with the installation of the public portion of the grinder pump sewer system within property (Lateral Line from the Trunk Line to the grinder pump, the grinder pump, and the electrical lines from the power company’s exter...
	9.3.20 Notify the public sewer system operators of high-level conditions (when red light on top of control/alarm panel is illuminated). The property owner would call an emergency phone number to inform the system operators of the red-light condition.
	9.3.21 Notify the public sewer system operators of power outages (lack of power to grinder pump).
	9.3.22 Pay the electrical costs to operate the grinder pump. The electrical cost to operate the grinder pump will be included in the electric bill for each property served by a grinder pump.
	9.3.23 Pay the cost for the replacement (purchase and installation) of the grinder pump tank and riser, if it fails for any reason.

	9.4. Grinder Pump Operation During Power Outages. During periods of power outages property owners shall:
	9.4.1 Limit the amount of wastewater generated during power outages to prevent sewage backups within the premises.
	9.4.2 Not use portable generators to operate the grinder pumps.


	Section 10 Schedule of REU Unit Factors.
	10.1. All Connection, Usage and other fees and charges for the sewer system shall be based upon the number of REUs on each lot, parcel of land, or premises as set forth in the Schedule of REU Unit Factors (hereafter referred to as the “Schedule”) as a...
	10.2. Classifications not specifically listed in the Schedule shall be assigned values as determined by the Township, but no facility shall be assigned less than one unit.
	10.3. Where multiple businesses exist at one location (shopping centers, hotels with restaurant and or bar facilities, etc.) the various businesses will be combined for equivalents.
	10.4. In cases of expansion or change of existing water/sewer uses, Connection Fees shall be levied in accordance with the current Connection Fee schedule based upon the difference in the current and expanded or changed use.

	Section 11 Connection Fees
	11.1. The owner of all premises required to connect to the System shall pay the Township Connection Fees which shall comprised of the following components:
	11.1.1 A Tap Fee, which shall be a per REU rate established by resolution of the Township Board, which may be enacted apart from the published Ordinance as necessary;
	11.1.2 A Grinder Pump Fee which shall be established by resolution of the Township Board, which may be enacted apart from the published Ordinance as necessary. The fee for the grinder pump shall be equal to the purchase price by the Township, includin...
	11.1.3 An Inspection fee to cover the cost of having the Township’s designated experts inspect and approve the connection to the System; and
	11.1.4 An Easement Fee which shall be the cost, as determined by the Township, for preparing and recording the easements required by this Ordinance.

	11.2. In addition to the Connection Fees as defined above, the owner of the premises shall be liable for the costs and expenses of acquiring and installing the connection to the System pursuant to Township specifications on file at the Township and fo...
	11.3. A single family residential building shall constitute a Dwelling Unit and shall be charged a minimum Tap Fee of one Residential Equivalent Unit (REU). Premises other than a single family residential unit shall pay a Tap Fee based upon the number...
	11.4. Upon any subsequent enlargement, addition, extension, or improvement to any structure, the Township shall review and redetermine the REUs for that structure. Upon finding by the Township after such REU review and redetermination that additional ...
	11.5. Any User that disagrees with the assigned REU values contained in the Table of Unit Factors may request the opportunity to appear before the Township Board in person for the purpose of reducing the assigned REUs and presenting any argument or ad...
	11.6. The appropriate Connection Fees must be paid in full at the time at the time of application, unless the Township Board, at its sole discretion, permits a deferral of payment over a period of time and at an interest rate determined by the Board i...
	11.7. If it has been determined that REUs assessed/allocated to a particular parcel were assessed in excess or are deemed no longer needed, the Owner, at the discretion and approval of the Township Board, may sell back the REUs to the Township at a ra...

	Section 12 Usage Charges
	12.1. Establishment and Basis for Computations. Rates and charges for use of the POTW shall be established by resolution of the Township Board,  which may be enacted apart from the published Ordinance as necessary.  The usage rates shall be based upon...
	12.2. Annual Review of Charges. User charges for operation, maintenance, and replacement shall be subject to the annual review of the User Charge System.
	12.3. Amounts, Billings, Sewer Service Charges. The rates and charges for service furnished by such system shall be levied upon each lot or parcel of land, building, or premises, having any sewer connection with such system, on the basis of the number...
	12.4. Annual of Fee Review. The usage rates adopted by the Township are estimated to be sufficient to provide for the expenses of operation, maintenance, and replacement of the system as are necessary to preserve the same in good repair and working or...
	12.5. No Free Service. No free service shall be allowed for any User of the Public Sewer and POTW, provided, however, that the Township shall receive sewer service at its facilities at no charge.
	12.6. Billing. Billing for wastewater service shall be the Township's responsibility. All bills shall be rendered monthly. Bills shall be prepared and mailed to the customer of record as closely as possible to the billing cycle. The failure to receive...
	12.7. Initial Billing. Billing shall begin based on one of the following conditions:
	12.7.1 The date that a certificate of occupancy is issued for a new structure; or
	12.7.2 The date that the connection to the Building Sewer is approved by the Inspector.

	12.8. Nonpayment. Current charges shall be due and payable within thirty (30) days after the date the sewer bills are prepared for mailing (hereafter referred to as the “due date”). The due date shall be shown on each bill and current charges that are...
	12.9. Collection of Delinquent Accounts. Any and all charges, such as property owner’s direct charges, operation and maintenance and capital usage charges, special assessment charges, interest, penalties, and all other charges whatsoever related to th...

	Section 13 Deferral of Special Assessment Charges and Waiver of Operation and Maintenance and Capital Charges
	13.1. The owners of the premises shall, under oath, complete a hardship application provided by the Township, and file said application, together with all other information and documentation reasonably required by the Township, with the Township Asses...
	13.2. Hardship applications shall be reviewed by the Township Board, and after due deliberation of hardship applications, the Township Board shall determine, in each case, whether there has been an adequate showing of financial hardship, and shall for...
	13.3. The decision of the Township Board following shall be final.
	13.4. In the event that the Township Board makes a finding of hardship, the Township Board shall fix the amount of partial or total deferment of any or all applicable fees, and in so doing, shall require an annual filing of financial status by each ap...
	13.4.1 A change in the financial status of any applicant which removes the basis for financial hardship; or
	13.4.2 A conveyance of any interest in the premises by any of the applicants, including the execution of a new security interest, in the premises or extension thereof; or
	13.4.3 A death of any of the applicants.

	13.5. Upon a determination of the Township Board deferring all or part of any or all applicable fees, the amount deferred shall constitute a lien on the subject property, and the property owner shall sign a document, in recordable form, that will prov...
	13.6. The Township Board shall keep a record of the number of hardship deferrals ’s that have been granted.
	13.7. Any deferral and/or waiver granted under the provisions of this Section shall not be construed to relieve the person who shall receive it from any liability or penalties imposed by other law for the commission or maintenance of a nuisance.

	Section 14 Extension of Time for Compliance.
	Section 15 Municipal Liability and Insurance.
	15.1. The Township shall not be responsible for interruptions of services due to natural calamities, equipment failures, or actions of the system users. It shall be the responsibility of the User that all connected equipment remain in good working ord...
	15.2. The Township shall not be liable for any injuries to persons or damage to property resulting from any work performed by private contractors hired to install, repair or maintain any Lateral Lines.
	15.3. Any claim for damages as a result of an overflow or back up of the sewage disposal system shall follow the procedures and requirements as set forth in Act No. 222 of the Public Acts of 2001 for the State of Michigan.
	15.4. The Township will maintain and carry insurance on all publicly owned assets of the Sewer System, of the kinds and in the amounts normally carried by public utility companies and municipalities engaged in the operation of Sewage Disposal Systems....

	Section 16 Power and Authority of Inspectors
	Section 17 Protection from Damage
	Section 18 Enforcement/Penalties
	18.1. Administrative Remedies
	18.1.1 The Township may suspend wastewater treatment services to any User when such suspension is necessary, in the opinion of the Township, in order to stop an actual or threatened discharge which presents or may present an imminent or substantial en...
	18.1.2 The Township may revoke, suspend, or terminate the wastewater discharge permit of any User which (a) fails to accurately report the wastewater constituents and characteristics of its discharge; (b) fails to report significant changes in wastewa...
	18.1.3 Whenever the Township finds that a User has violated any provision of this Ordinance, Industrial Waste Permit, or Order issued hereunder, or other Pretreatment Standard or Requirement, the Supervisor will issue a Notice of Violation to formally...
	18.1.4 When the Township finds that a User has violated any provision of this Ordinance, Industrial Waste Permit, or Order issued hereunder or other Pretreatment Standard or Requirement, the Supervisor may issue an Administrative Order to Show Cause r...
	18.1.5 When the Township and an affected User agree to a violation and to the remedial solution, the Supervisor may issue an Order of Consent or similar document to formally establish such agreement. This document will specify the nature of the violat...
	18.1.6 When the Township and affected User do not agree to the violation or to the remedial solution, the Supervisor may issue an Order to Achieve Compliance. This document will specify the nature of the violation and include required actions such as ...
	18.1.7 When the Township finds that a User has violated and continues to violate any provision of this Ordinance, Industrial Waste Permit, or Order issued hereunder, or other Pretreatment Standard or Requirement, the Supervisor, and the Township Attor...
	18.1.8 Whenever the Township finds that a User's discharge is in violation of any provision of this Ordinance or any permit issued hereunder and that the violation creates or threatens to create an emergency situation such as damage to the POTW, hazar...
	18.1.9 Except for emergency situations covered under this Section, whenever the Township finds that a User's continuing violation warrants revocation of its permit or privilege to discharge into the wastewater system, the Supervisor and Township Attor...
	18.1.10 Receipt, or non-receipt, of a(n):
	i Notice of Violation;
	ii Order to Show Cause;
	iii Cease and Desist Order;
	iv Emergency Cease and Desist Order; or
	v Notice of Termination

	18.1.11 In addition to the sanctions, orders, liabilities, and other remedies prescribed under this Section, a User shall be liable to the Township for any and all fines, penalties, and associated legal and other costs incurred or expended by the Town...
	18.1.12 Rights of Appeal. Except for emergency situations covered under Subparagraph 2.f. of this section, any User desiring to dispute a Notice of Violation or order of the Township, pursuant to this Ordinance, including but not limited to fines, may...

	18.2. Judicial Penalties. When the Township finds that a person has violated or continues to violate any provision of this Ordinance, Industrial Waste Permit, or order issued hereunder, or other Pretreatment Standard or Requirement, the Township may p...
	18.2.1 Injunctive Relief. A person who violates or continues to violate any provision of this Ordinance, Industrial Waste Permit, or Order issued hereunder, or other Pretreatment Standard or Requirement will be liable to issuance of a preliminary inju...
	18.2.2 Civil Penalties. A User who has violated or continues to violate any provision of this Ordinance, Industrial Waste Permit, or Order issued hereunder, or other Pretreatment Standard or Requirement, will be liable for a civil penalty of up to one...
	18.2.3 Criminal Prosecution. Any person who:
	i violates any provision of this Ordinance, Industrial Waste Permit, or Order issued hereunder, or other Pretreatment Standard or Requirement; or
	ii knowingly makes any false statements, representations, or certifications in any application, record, report, plan, or other document filed or required to be maintained pursuant to this Ordinance, Industrial Waste Permit, or Order issued hereunder, ...
	iii falsifies, tampers with, or knowingly renders inaccurate any data device or test method used to monitor a discharge pursuant to this Ordinance, Industrial Waste Permit, or Order issued hereunder, or Pretreatment Standard or Requirement



	Section 19 Records Retention
	19.1. The Township shall maintain and keep proper books of records and accounts, separate from all other records and accounts, in which shall be made full and correct entries of all transactions relating to the sanitary system.
	19.2. All Industrial Users subject to this Ordinance shall retain and preserve for no less than three (3) years, any records, books, documents, memoranda, reports, correspondence, and any and all summaries thereto, relating to monitoring, sampling, an...
	19.3. Classification of old and new Industrial Users shall also be reviewed annually by the Township.

	Section 20 Audits
	Section 21 Validity, Severability, Conflict.
	21.1. The provisions of this Ordinance are severable, and if any of the provisions, words, phrases, clauses, or terms, or the application thereof to any person, firm or corporation, or to any circumstances, shall be held invalid, illegal, or unconstit...
	21.2. All laws and parts of laws, all ordinances, codes, and regulations which are inconsistent with or in conflict with or repugnant to any provisions of this Ordinance, shall be deemed not to apply; provided that nothing herein contained shall be co...

	Section 22 Effective Date





